
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

April 07, 2020 at 5:30 PM  

AA Comeaux Recreation Center, 300 AA Comeaux Drive, 
Suite 200, Abbeville, Louisiana 70510 

 

AGENDA 

NOTICE POSTED:  April  6, 2020 at 4:00 P.M.  

REGULAR ORDER OF BUSINESS 

             Call to Order by Mayor 
             Roll Call by Kathy Faulk  
             Prayer 
             Pledge  

PERSONNEL 

1. Police Department personnel. 

PRESENTATIONS 

1. Ms. Anne Falgout to discuss available loan and grants through the SBA package and the State's 

Economic Development Program for COVID-19. 

MINUTES AND APPROVAL OF BILLS 

1. To ratify bills paid in the month of February 2020 and March 2020. 

2. To approve the minutes from the special City Council meeting held on February 18, 2020, the regular 

City Council meetings held on February 18, 2020 and March 3,2020, the emergency Special meeting 

held on March 19, 2020, the personnel interviews held on March 3, 2020 and the Committee meeting 

held on March 3, 2020. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
                  (To allow comments on any of the following items prior to action.) 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Public hearing for comments on the proposed ordinance to revise and reorganize Chapter 15.5-Solid 

Waste Ordinance.  The changes pertain to large garbage bins. 

2. To adopt an ordinance to revise and reorganize Chapter 15.5-Solid Waste. 

3. To approve the purchase of heaters for the truck rooms at the Main Fire Station - Chief Jude Mire. 

4. To ratify payment of partial payment number 1 and number 2 payable to Glenn Lege Construction for 

the LA 14 Downtown Abbeville Streetscape Project. 

5. To ratify payment of partial payment estimate #3 in the amount of $49,050.00 payable to TyBe 

Company and to adopt the resolution of acceptance for the Mechanical Screen project at the 

Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

6. To ratify the payments totaling $38,507.50 to convert Stonebridge Lift station to suction re-lifting 

pumps. 

7. To award the bid for rubbish abatement at 103 Gauraud Street. 

8. To ratify the execution of an intergovernmental agreement wherein Sheriff Mike Couvilion has donated 

personnel vests to the City of Abbeville, Abbeville Police Department. 

9. To approve application for payment number 4 in the amount of $33,545.70 payable to L. Michaud 

Construction for the Rehabilitation of the Main Hangar Project. 

10. To approve a resolution of acceptance authorizing the Mayor to execute and act of acceptance for the 

Rehabilitation of the Main Hangar Project. 

11. To authorize advertisement for bids for the Rehabilitation of the Runway and Partial Taxiway project 

subject to FAA and DOTD funding availability and their review and approval of the plans and 

specifications.  

OLD BUSINESS 

1



1. None. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

1. COVID-19 Virus Disaster. 

TOPICS FOR DISCUSSION OR REVIEW  

1.        Attorney 

2.        Mayor 

3.        Police Chief 

4.        Fire Chief 

5.        Council Members 

ADJOURN 

 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, 
if you need special assistance, please contact 
Mayor Mark Piazza’s office at 337-893-8550, 
describing the assistance that is necessary. 

  

2



3



ECONOMIC RECOVERY TOOLKIT
KEY COVID-19 BUSINESS ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

Have you checked your eligibility for key programs 
to assist business recovery from COVID-19?

Use this checklist to review One Acadiana's guides 
to some of the key programs available.

Information is changing rapidly and subject to change.

Please consult with your banking, accounting, or tax professionals 

for guidance specific to your unique business needs.

SBA – PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM (PPP)

• Forgivable loans designed to provide a direct incentive

for small businesses to keep their workers on the payroll

SBA – ECONOMIC INJURY DISASTER LOANS (EIDL) AND ADVANCES

• Low-interest federal loans to provide working capital to

 small businesses and nonprofits

• Provide an emergency advance of up to $10,000 within

  three days of applying, which does not have to be repaid

IRS – PAID LEAVE TAX CREDITS

• Tax credits to cover certain costs of providing employees

with required paid sick leave and expanded family and

medical leave for reasons related to COVID-19

IRS – EMPLOYEE RETENTION TAX CREDITS

• Refundable tax credit of 50% of up to $10,000 in wages

paid by an eligible employer whose business has been

financially impacted by COVID-19

LED – LOAN PORTFOLIO GUARANTEE PROGRAM (LPGP)

• State program that will o�er loans of up to $100,000 to

Louisiana small businesses of fewer than 100 employees

that are impacted by the COVID-19 crisis

4



WHO IS ELIGIBLE FOR THE  
PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM?

PAYCHECK PROTECTION  
PROGRAM GUIDE

PREPARED BY

The Paycheck Protection Program is available to small businesses, 501(c)(3)s, Tribal businesses, 

and veterans organizations that: 

• Have less than 500 employees or are self-employed individuals  

(sole proprietors or independent contractors)

• Were in business on February 15, 2020

• Paid payroll taxes on employees or paid independent contractors 

Also eligible are accommodation and food service businesses (NAICS Code 72) with 500 or 

fewer employees per location.

Businesses in certain industries with more than 500 employees may be eligible if they meet 

applicable SBA size standards for those industries, which can be found at this link. 

The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act, 

enacted on March 27, 2020, includes a key provision – the  

Paycheck Protection Program – that expands the U.S. Small  

Business Administration’s (SBA) existing 7(a) loan program.  

The program provides $349 billion for small businesses to  

cover near-term operating expenses and keep their employees.

FOR MORE INFORMATION, VISIT: ONEACADIANA.ORG/COVID-19-RESOURCES

CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE.
THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS AS OF APRIL 3, 2020 AND SUBJECT TO CHANGE. 

5



LOAN FORGIVENESS: 

• The following expenses will be forgiven* during the 8-week period after the loan 

is originated: payroll and benefit costs, rent, utilities, and payments on interest of a 

mortgage obligation

• For salaries above $100,000, expenses above that cap are not eligible for forgiveness

• Forgiveness is proportionally reduced for entities that have already laid-off employees 

(e.g., if an entity laid-off 25% of their employees, the forgiveness would be reduced to 

75%) – entities can remediate this penalty by rehiring employees prior to June 30

• Forgiveness amount can be up to the full principal amount of the loan and any  

accrued interest

*At least 75% of the forgiven amount must be used for payroll costs.

HOW DOES THE PAYCHECK  
PROTECTION PROGRAM WORK?

• Eligible entities can apply for loans made directly by participating institutions

• The covered loan period is February 15, 2020 - June 30, 2020

• Loans can be used for:

• Payroll costs, consisting of compensation to employees, including: salaries/wages; 

paid vacation, parental, family, medical, or sick leave; allowance for dismissal 

or separation; group health care benefits; retirement; and payment of state and 

local taxes assessed on the compensation of employees; and for an independent 

contractor or sole proprietor, wages, commissions, income, or net earnings from 

self-employment or similar compensation

• Interest on mortgage obligations

• Rent / lease payments

• Utilities

• Interest on existing debt

• No personal/individual guarantees required; SBA guarantees 100% of the loan

• Borrowers must provide good faith certification that the loan is necessary because of 

economic uncertainty caused by COVID-19 and will be applied to allowable uses

FOR MORE INFORMATION, VISIT: ONEACADIANA.ORG/COVID-19-RESOURCES

CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE.
THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS AS OF APRIL 3, 2020 AND SUBJECT TO CHANGE. 

6



FOR MORE INFORMATION, VISIT: ONEACADIANA.ORG/COVID-19-RESOURCES

WHAT ARE THE LOAN AMOUNTS,  
TERMS, AND INTEREST RATES?

HOW DO YOU APPLY FOR THE  
PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM?

Loan amounts are calculated using the average total monthly payments for payroll costs over 

the last 12 months – that monthly average is multiplied by 2.5 to determine the maximum loan 

amount. Loan amounts are capped at $10 million. Terms are the same for everyone – interest 

rates will be 1%, loan payments are deferred for 6 months (interest will accrue during the 

deferment period), and loans must be repaid within 2 years.

You can apply through any existing SBA 7(a) lender or through any federally insured depository 

institution, federally insured credit union, or Farm Credit System institution that is participating. 

Other regulated lenders will be available to make these loans once they are approved 

and enrolled in the program. You should consult with your local lender as to whether it is 

participating. All loans will have the same terms regardless of lender or borrower. A list  

of participating lenders as well as additional information and full terms can be found  

at https://www.sba.gov/paycheckprotection/find.

• Small businesses and sole proprietorships can apply for and receive loans  

starting April 3, 2020

• Independent contractors and self-employed individuals can apply for and  

receive loans starting April 10, 2020

Note: Businesses can apply for and receive loans from both the Paycheck Protection  
Program and the Economic Injury Disaster Loan (EIDL); however, funds cannot be used  
for the same purpose.

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS AS OF APRIL 3, 2020 AND SUBJECT TO CHANGE. 

7



WHO IS ELIGIBLE FOR AN EIDL?

ECONOMIC INJURY 
DISASTER LOANS GUIDE

PREPARED BY

In general, all of the following entities that have suffered substantial economic injury caused 

by the disaster (COVID-19), provided they were in existence on January 31, 2020:

• Businesses with fewer than 500 employees

• Sole proprietors

• Independent contractors

• Most private nonprofits

• Businesses that have more than 500 employees, provided they meet applicable SBA

employee-based size standards for their industry, which can be found here

The U.S. Small Business Administration (SBA) recently 

approved Louisiana’s request for an Economic Injury 

Disaster Loan (EIDL) declaration, unlocking low-interest 

federal disaster loans for working capital to help small 

businesses cover their operating expenses. 

FOR MORE INFORMATION, VISIT: ONEACADIANA.ORG/COVID-19-RESOURCES

CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE.
THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS AS OF APRIL 3 ,  2020 AND SUBJECT TO CHANGE. 

8



*EIDL EMERGENCY ADVANCE

When you apply for an EIDL, you can request an emergency advance of up to $10,000. The

SBA will provide the advance within 3 days of receiving your application. You will not have to 

repay the advance, even if your application for a loan is denied.

Applicants who filed prior to availability of the advance are encouraged to reapply using 

SBA’s new, streamlined application, located here.

FOR MORE INFORMATION, VISIT: ONEACADIANA.ORG/COVID-19-RESOURCES

CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE.
THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS AS OF APRIL 3 ,  2020 AND SUBJECT TO CHANGE. 

HOW DOES THE ECONOMIC INJURY 
DISASTER LOAN (EIDL) WORK?

Eligible entities can apply for loans through the SBA at covid19relief.sba.gov. Funds come from 

the U.S. Treasury.

• EIDL funds can only be used for:

• Fixed debt payments

• Payroll costs

• Accounts payable

• Other bills that could have been paid had the disaster not occurred

• Loans are not intended to replace lost sales or profits or for expansion and cannot be

used to refinance long-term debts

• SBA will review credit history and applicants must show ability to repay the loan

• Applicants can also apply for an EIDL advance of up to $10,000, which would be made

available in 72 hours and does not have to be repaid*

• Application deadline is December 31, 2020

Note: Businesses can apply for and receive loans from both the Paycheck Protection Program and 
the Economic Injury Disaster Loan (EIDL); however, funds cannot be used for the same purpose. 

9



FOR MORE INFORMATION, VISIT: ONEACADIANA.ORG/COVID-19-RESOURCES

WHAT ARE THE LOAN AMOUNTS, 
TERMS, AND INTEREST RATES?

HOW DO YOU APPLY FOR AN EIDL?

WHO DO I CONTACT IF I HAVE QUESTIONS?

Loan amounts and terms are determined on a case-by-case basis, based on each applicant’s 

financial condition and the economic injury determined by the SBA, with a maximum loan 

maturity of up to 30 years. Loans are capped at $2 million. Interest rates are 3.75% for small 

businesses and 2.75% for non-profit organizations.

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS AS OF APRIL 3 ,  2020 AND SUBJECT TO CHANGE. 

To apply, visit:  

COVID19RELIEF.SBA.GOV

For additional information on EIDLs, 

contact the SBA disaster assistance 

customer service center at  

1-800-659-2955 or

DISASTERCUSTOMERSERVICE@SBA.GOV

10



FOR MORE INFORMATION, VISIT: ONEACADIANA.ORG/COVID-19-RESOURCES

WHAT TAX CREDITS DOES THE FFCRA PROVIDE?

WHEN CAN EMPLOYERS START CLAIMING THE CREDIT?

The FFCRA provides businesses with tax credits to cover certain costs of providing employees with 

required paid sick leave and expanded family and medical leave for reasons related to COVID-19,  

from April 1, 2020, through December 31, 2020.

Eligible Employers may claim tax credits for qualified leave wages paid to employees on leave due to 

paid sick leave or expanded family and medical leave for reasons related to COVID-19 for leave taken 

beginning on April 1, 2020, and ending on December 31, 2020.

Eligible Employers will claim the credits on their federal employment tax returns (e.g., Form 941, 

Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return), but they can benefit more quickly from the credits by 

reducing their federal employment tax deposits. If there are insufficient federal employment taxes to 

cover the amount of the credits, an Eligible Employer may request an advance payment of the credits 

from the IRS by submitting a Form 7200, Advance Payment of Employer Credits Due to COVID-19.

The IRS expects to begin processing these requests during April 2020.

The Internal Revenue Service will issue further guidance and manage the FFCRA tax credit process. 
Please contact the IRS with specific questions.

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS AS OF APRIL 3 ,  2020 AND SUBJECT TO CHANGE.  

PREPARED BY

COVID-19 PAID LEAVE 
TAX CREDITS

The Families First Coronavirus Response Act (the “FFCRA”), signed by President Trump 
on March 18, 2020, provides small and midsize employers refundable tax credits that 
reimburse them, dollar-for-dollar, for the cost of providing paid sick and family leave 

wages to their employees for leave related to COVID-19.

For more information, view the IRS’s detailed FAQs at this link.

11



FOR MORE INFORMATION, VISIT: ONEACADIANA.ORG/COVID-19-RESOURCES

WHO IS ELIGIBLE?

Private employers, including non-profits, carrying on a trade or business in 2020 that:

• Have operations partially or fully suspended as a result of orders from a governmental authority

due to COVID-19, or

• Experience a decline in gross receipts by more than 50% in a quarter compared to the same

quarter in 2019 (eligibility ends when gross receipts in a quarter exceed 80% compared to the

same 2019 quarter)

With respect to tax-exempt organizations under 501 (c)of the tax code, the requirement to be partially 

or fully suspended applies to all operations of the organization.  

Employers who receive a Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loan are not eligible for a tax credit. 

SOURCE: U.S. CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS AS OF APRIL 3 ,  2020 AND SUBJECT TO CHANGE.  

PREPARED BY

GUIDE TO THE
EMPLOYEE RETENTION
TAX CREDIT
FOR COVID-19 IMPACTED EMPLOYERS

The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act 
created a new employee retention tax credit for employers who 
are closed, partially closed, or experiencing significant revenue 

losses as a result of COVID-19.

12



FOR MORE INFORMATION, VISIT: ONEACADIANA.ORG/COVID-19-RESOURCES

SOURCE: U.S. CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS AS OF APRIL 3 ,  2020 AND SUBJECT TO CHANGE.  

HOW MUCH IS THE TAX CREDIT?

WHICH EMPLOYEES COUNT TOWARD ELIGIBILITY?

HOW IS THE CREDIT PAID?

This new employee retention tax credit is a 50% tax credit for the first $10,000 of compensation, 

including the employer portion of health benefits, for each eligible employee. 

• Compensation does not include paid sick or family leave for which the employer is reimbursed

under the Families First Coronavirus Response Act

• The credit only applies to wages paid after March 12, 2020 and before January 1, 2021

• For employers with more than 100 employees: Full-time employees who are (i) being paid but (ii)

not providing service due to either a full or partial shutdown or a eduction in gross receipts count

toward eligibility

• For employers with 100 or fewer full-time employees: All employees, regardless of whether

those employees are providing service, count toward eligibility

• Employers may not claim the same employee for this credit and the Work Opportunity Tax Credit

for the same period. In addition, employers may not claim the same wages for an employee

under this credit and also under the employer credit in section 45S for FMLA

The refundable credit is applied against the employer portion of payroll taxes. The Treasury 

Department will develop a process for employers to receive an advance payment of the tax credit.

The Internal Revenue Service will issue further guidance and mange 
the ERTC process. Please contact the IRS with specific questions.

13



FOR MORE INFORMATION, VISIT: ONEACADIANA.ORG/COVID-19-RESOURCES

HOW DOES THE LPGP WORK?

The Louisiana Loan Portfolio Guaranty Program (LPGP) works with Louisiana banks to offer loans of up 

to $100,000 to Louisiana small businesses of fewer than 100 employees that have been impacted by 

the COVID-19 pandemic. The total loan pool is $50 million.

CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE
THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS AS OF APRIL 3 ,  2020 AND SUBJECT TO CHANGE.  

PREPARED BY

LOUISIANA LOAN PORTFOLIO 

GUARANTY PROGRAM (LPGP)

Louisiana Economic Development (LED) has partnered with the Louisiana 

Bankers Association (LBA) and the Louisiana Public Facilities Authority 

(LPFA) to create the Louisiana Loan Portfolio Guaranty Program (LPGP).

WHO IS ELIGIBLE FOR THE LPGP?

For-profit small businesses domiciled in Louisiana, which employ less than 100 employees, and have 

been impacted by COVID-19.

Ineligible entities include gaming institutions, churches and nonprofit organizations, real estate 

developers, pawn shops, and lending and investment institutions.

14



FOR MORE INFORMATION, VISIT: ONEACADIANA.ORG/COVID-19-RESOURCES

CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE
THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS AS OF APRIL 3 ,  2020 AND SUBJECT TO CHANGE.  

WHAT CAN LPGP LOANS BE USED FOR?

WHAT ARE THE LOAN AMOUNTS, TERMS, 
AND INTEREST RATES?

The program is designed to help business owners maintain the continuation of operations as a result 

of COVID-19. Suggested uses for the loan are to maintain employee payroll for an 8-week period, as 

well as to maintain continuance of operations within COVID-19 executive orders, proclamations, and 

relevant state agency guidance. The need for the loan and use of proceeds must be directly related to 

the economic injury caused by the COVID-19 pandemic.

Note: Applying for state-backed bridge loans like the LPGP will not exclude businesses from applying 
for SBA programs like the Economic Injury Disaster Loan (EIDL) and Paycheck Protection Program 
(PPP). The lender ultimately has discretion over the loan amount based upon an analysis of payroll 
and operational expenses.

Qualifying businesses may be eligible for loans of up to $100,000. Loan amounts will be dependent 

upon the business’s employment and operational expenses prior to the COVID-19 pandemic and will 

be evaluated by the lending institutions.

The repayment period for the loan can range from 1 to 5 years based on the business’s functionality 

during the length of the emergency period. There will be a fixed interest rate of up to 3.5 percent 

(lower rates subject to lending institution). The first 6 months of the loan will not be interest bearing, 

AND no payment will be due for the first 6 months of the loan.

HOW DO YOU APPLY FOR A LPGP LOAN?

Contact a participating bank to apply.  

A list of participating banks is available on LED’s website.

15



FOR MORE INFORMATION, VISIT: ONEACADIANA.ORG/COVID-19-RESOURCES

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS AS OF APRIL 3 ,  2020 AND SUBJECT TO CHANGE.  

IS THERE A DEADLINE TO APPLY?

WHERE CAN I FIND MORE INFORMATION ON THE LPGP?

Applications will be accepted by banks until April 30, 2020.

For additional information, visit LED’s website, or you can email 

LEDSmallbizloans@la.gov with specific questions.

Lenders interested in participating should contact LED by calling 

Business Development Manager Kelly Raney at (225) 342-0411  

or by emailing LEDSmallbizloans@la.gov.

16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



1 
 

City of Abbeville 

Special Meeting 

February 18, 2020 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met in special session on February 18, 2020 at 

5:00 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room located at 101 North State 

Street, with the Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor, presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members, Francis Plaisance, Terry Broussard, Brady 

Broussard, Jr., Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Roslyn 

White   

 

Members Absent:  None   

 

Also, Present:   Ike Funderburk, City Attorney 

Clay Menard, Public Works Director 

Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

Bill Spearman, Police Chief 

Joseph Vallee’, Municipal Civil Service Board 

        

Mayor Piazza stated this special meeting has been called for public hearings and discussion of the 

condemnation of 2 properties.   We will address the blighted property at 913 E. Oak Street and 

516 Dutel Street.   

 

913 E. Oak Street – Ms. Crystal Elaine Hernandez was present at the hearing.  Mayor Piazza stated 

that the property needs to be secured.  Ms. Hernandez stated the doors and windows have been 

boarded up.  We placed solid plywood.  It is her intention to fix the property.  The grass has been 

cut.  Mayor Piazza stated the main issue is that the doors and windows remain boarded up to 

protect the property against vandalism and other things that would disrupt the neighborhood.   

 

-01 introduced by Ms. Roslyn White and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to condemn the 

property at 913 E. Oak Street, give the property owner 5 days to secure the property and then 

go out and inspect the property to verify it has been secured.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

516 Dutel – Ms. Willie Mae Sellers Gaspard was present at the hearing.  The owner of the mobile 

home (Gwen Campbell) was not present.  Ms. Gaspard is only the property owner.  Ike stated if 

the property is condemned and we have the mobile home demolished and removed, then we will 

lien the property for the cost of that.  Ms. Gaspard stated the owner of the mobile home is still 

paying her rent.  No one is living in the mobile home.  There are no utilities.  The mobile home 

owner has told Ms. Gaspard that she is trying to get a permit to demolish the trailer.  She cut one 

of the trees on the property without her permission.  Mayor Piazza suggested that we condemn 

the mobile home, and give them 30 days to either demolish or move the mobile home.  Ms. 

Campbell will be notified that the building has been condemned and has been ordered to be 

demolished.  The mobile home owner will either have to tear it down herself or move it.  He hopes 

she doesn’t just abandon it and drop it in Ms. Gaspard’s lap.  If the City has to pay to tear the 

building down then it becomes Ms. Gaspard’s burden.  We hope the trailer owner will do the right 

thing.  Councilwoman Broussard stated the mobile home has to come down as it is beyond repair 

and she will work with the mobile home owner.  

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr.  to condemn 

the mobile home located at 516 Dutel, give the mobile home owner 30 days to remove or 

78



2 
 

demolish the mobile home and if the property owner does not demolish or remove the mobile 

home, request bids for demolition. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Piazza declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Mark Piazza 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

79



1 
 

City of Abbeville 

Regular Meeting 

February 18, 2020 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met in regular session on February 18, 2020 at 

5:30 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room located at 101 North State 

Street, with the Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor, presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members, Francis Plaisance, Terry Broussard, Brady 

Broussard, Jr., Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Roslyn 

White   

 

Members Absent:  None   

 

Also, Present:   Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

    Bill Spearman, Police Chief 

    Ike Funderburk, City Attorney 

Clay Menard, Public Works Director 

Denise Mire, Park Director 

Charlene Beckett, Main Street Manager 

Tom Carroll, Engineer 

Richard Primeaux, Engineer 

Joseph Vallee’, Municipal Civil Service Board 

Ben Rivera & Colton Daigle, Insurance agents 

Felicia Williams, Abbeville Parks & Recreation Board 

Liz Gremilion, Abbeville Garden Club 

Tommy Picard, Christian Vincent, Lawrence Briggs, Chris Samuels,         

      and James Broussard,  Quality Sports Authority (QSA) 

Several players from the 11-12-year-old All-Stars with QSA 

Carlton Campbell, Former City Councilman 

Marilyn Mitchell 

Phyllis Tomino 

        

Mayor Piazza asked Mr. Carlton Campbell to lead the assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance.   

Mayor Piazza led the assembly in prayer.  

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to approve to 

probational appointment of Jeremy Deville to the position of Police Officer with the Abbeville 

Police Department.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to accept the 

resignations of Jacoby Briscoe and Brittany Hebert, both Police Officers with the Abbeville Police 

Department.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-03 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to ratify bills 

paid in the month of January 2020.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-04 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to approve the 

minutes from the January 21, 2020 regular City Council meeting.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

80



2 
 

Mayor Piazza asked if there were any comments from the public on any agenda item.   

 

Ms. Marilyn Mitchell began a discussion dealing with the agenda item pertaining to the renewal 

of the QSA contract.  She wanted to know where QSA’s annual financial report is.  She wanted to 

know what is the revenue that QSA has brought to the City.  She also wanted to know why does 

QSA get the fundraiser instead of the people who raise the money.  QSA has been having this 

program for three years at $75,000 per year.  The problem she has is that this is a qualified 

company that is supposed to improve Abbeville city kids.  With the enhancement of improving our 

kids they say it went from 65 to 185 kids.  If you are an established company and you are supposed 

to improve our City, we have over 1,000 kids in the City.  You reached out in the newspaper but 

you are an established company so you should know how to raise the children’s (enrollment) of 

your program.  What have you done for our City?  The parks look dead and you go to Erath and it 

looks like it is booming.  Are we dying in Abbeville?  We have to have accountability for this money.  

She wants all children to have opportunity.  What is the problem? They should know how to bring 

revenue into the City.  What are you going to give Abbeville?  I want to get what I paid for.  If I 

ask you for a reversible jersey, then I want a reversible jersey.  If I ask you to buy me some balls, I 

want the balls I asked for.  Give me what I ask for.  We are the City of Abbeville and we are dealing 

with Abbeville kids and that is part of the contract.  Read your goals and objectives.  QSA gets the 

gate, concession and the registration.  She wants accountability.  Where is your annual financial 

statement?  Mr. Tommy Picard stated this program was established in 1959 by Ralph Sellers and 

Irby Luquette.  It has been in existence for 70 years.  Everything in the park was built by parents.  

The City did not have much investment.  We bust our butt every night.  He has never seen some 

of these people that are complaining there.  They are not there at 2:00 AM in the morning with a 

rake in their hand when its raining or being there to help bring some of these kids home.  He has 

done all that.  In 1974, his first year of coaching, he had 15 on a team.  He had six black kids and 

those six black kids did not walk home.  I brought them home.  We didn’t choose to go to Erath 

we were forced to go to Erath.  We built everything in that park.  He borrowed $60,000 for the 

recreation center on his name.  The minute we finished paying it, the City took it away from us.  

We operated there from 1993 until 2008 there.  We invested over $800,000 at that park.  VC is 

playing on a field that we built.  We can’t even play on it in the summer.  We built the fence at 

Luquette field.  We got $40,000 to renovate Theriot field.  If you want to see what it costs, come 

to the gym.  We will let you work at the gym.  We will let you collect the gate.  We do not have 

anything to hide.  If we were stealing there would be no way we would be in existence.  Why didn’t 

you go out and get goals at Abbeville High?  We got goals for these kids to play.  They can’t play 

unless we have the goals.  We found someone who agreed to pay for them.  Our program was, at 

one time, the best in the country.  We can’t bring that back without your support.  Enough is 

enough.  He has enough.  I get there at 8 o’clock in the morning and sometimes work until 

midnight.  Everyone calls me at any time and I answer the phone.  I take care of all these kids right 

here.  My family has suffered and I have enough.  I’ve never seen you, Marilyn, at a game doing 

anything.  You told me the other day that QSA never did anything for you.  Jason and Brandon 

played for us.  If it would have been today the way the program was three years ago, you wouldn’t 

have anything.  Say thank you sometimes.  Tell me thank you sometimes.  Every time I come to a 

City Council meeting; it is the same thing.  Without Carlton I wouldn’t have anything.  They would 

bring us here and tell us what we did wrong.  They never said thank you.  Right now, we have 

spent almost $50,000 for salaries, people at our gate, people at our score table and people at our 

concession stands.  90% of those people live in the City of Abbeville.  If you don’t want us, then no 

problem.  We will continue to exist.  We will make it work because our parents will help us make 

it work.  It didn’t work over here because somebody didn’t help.  You tell me why we can’t get kids 

to play.  Everyone here, give me 25 kids per person.  Terry give me 25 kids from your district.  Most 

of the 185 kids are from your district.  We support your district.  Enough is enough.  Me and my 

family do not deserve this.  If anybody wants to come take it over, you are welcome to come take 

81



3 
 

it over.  We are lucky we have James.  We are blessed with Lawrence and Chris.  They are involved.  

They can tell you what the problem is.  Ask Lawrence Briggs what the problem is.  He can tell you.  

When you see Lawrence at the gym, he brings his four kids with him.  They are with him wherever 

he goes.  This thing will not work unless we get the support of the community.  We are based in 

Erath but we don’t do anything with the City Council in Erath.  If we walk away, who will take our 

place?  I nominate Marilyn Mitchell to come take my place for one week.  Enough is enough.  I 

have been taking this for forty years and I’m not taking this anymore.  I need the support of the 

Council, the Recreation Board and everybody else.  If you have 1,000 kids, then give me some.  We 

won’t turn anybody away.  We had 19 kids that didn’t pay this year.  We didn’t turn them away.  

I have a lady that since 2008 she has never paid a registration.  She has 6 kids and every year they 

play.  Find me some sponsors.  If you are not part of the solution then you are part of the problem.  

I had a father who called and said he couldn’t afford to pay.  I told him to meet me the next 

morning at 10:00 AM to discuss it.  He didn’t show up until 2:00 PM because he was at the casino 

the previous night.  It is not our problem.  Our coaches are around their kids.  I admire them.  You 

think James wants to be at the gym until 9:00 PM and then have to pick up two kids walking home 

on the side of the street because somebody left them there?  That is not James Broussard’s fault.  

Correct that.  James Broussard stated he is here doing this because of Tommy Picard.  When he 

came up with Brandon and Jason, Abbeville was second to none.  We are trying to get the parish 

involved.  We work constantly trying to get more kids out.  Biddy basketball mandates that you 

have adjustable goals.  It costs $7,000 to put those goals up.  We finally got the money to do that 

in Abbeville.  Biddy basketball is coming back to Abbeville.  Biddy Basketball tournaments will be 

a huge revenue maker for the City.  This means more teams will be staying in Abbeville and eating 

in your restaurants.  This thing is growing.  Without QSA you won’t have Biddy basketball.  We 

have 48 kids playing all-stars.  Without QSA there is no license to play Biddy basketball.  You might 

have a league and do something else but you will be stuck playing the same kids over and over.  

Biddy is about getting the kids out of the City of Abbeville to see what else there is out there and 

to have fun.  That is what this is all about.  Councilwoman White wanted to address a couple of 

concerns expressed by Ms. Marilyn.  From Terry and I’s vantage point, we came in a little late 

after this contract was signed.  She thinks that the City did it with the best of intentions and there 

have been some growing pains between that transition of the City hosting their own recreation 

department to QSA.  She knows that she and a few of the Council visited with QSA and expressed 

concerns over the lack of tournaments in the City of Abbeville and over the lack of practices in 

Abbeville.  That is how the conversation about the goals came up and that is why we are getting 

goals in the City.  She is asking the public to be patient.  She thinks this is the right move for the 

City at this point.  We have all learned from the first three years and we will continue to learn and 

grow the program.  She thinks a lot of those growing pains are over now and we can start moving 

forward.  If you have ideas and concerns or interest of sports and how we might be able to improve 

the number of kids then we are open to hearing that.  QSA is also open to hearing that.  QSA sent 

letters with all the kids home from school and they didn’t get very many people signing up from 

that.  They are making the attempt and now we are using social media and the paper.  There are 

other ways that, we as a City, as well as QSA are trying to get the word out.  She is asking the 

public to be supportive of the contract with QSA and what the City is trying to do.  We are trying 

to provide more opportunities for kids in a way that is cost effective for taxpayers.  Councilman 

Plaisance stated that he was at the World Series when Babe Ruth’s wife came to the game and 

when Governor Edwin Edwards flew into center field.  Those were the days when we had a really 

good time.  He went to all the World Series and Tommy was there constantly.  From what he 

heard here tonight from Tommy and James, he would like to see the City continue with the 

contract.  The potential is there.  He doesn’t think we will ever get back to where we were at one 

time but we can, at least, have a program for our kids in the City.  If we don’t have that, what do 

we have?  He had reservations about the money but, Ms. Marilyn, maybe we need to give it a 

chance and go a little longer with this program to see where it will go.  We need to give Tommy 

82



4 
 

and his group an opportunity to see if we can’t build our program in Abbeville.  We have too many 

kids out in the streets with nothing to do.  We appreciate what Tommy has done.  Mr. Lawrence 

Briggs stated if the parents don’t want it then it will not work.  We can talk about everything else 

but if the parents don’t pay the money, drop off their kids and pick them up then we don’t have 

anything.  The parents need to participate.  He does what he does out of the love of the kids.  He 

can only do so much as a coach.  Mayor Piazza stated that is an important point that you bring 

out for QSA.  QSA has a network of parents that are willing to go out there and do the job to make 

the program work.  Tommy has been doing this almost all of his life.  The City made an attempt 

to do it on their own and we failed miserably at it.  Our first director, Jason O’Brien did a very 

good job and had the kids out there.  But unfortunately, he died.  Then the next two guys had to 

be fired.  Then we hired Denise who has done a very good job but she had to do the job by herself 

because she didn’t have the support.  Since we have had this contract with QSA he has seen a lot 

of headway and a lot of positive strides.  We have come a long way in three years.  No, it is not 

perfect, but it is getting there.  Now that we have some new blood with James and the people he 

has been working with, there are a lot more kids from Abbeville involved in the program.  Being 

able to play some of the games in Abbeville will make a big difference.  That is real, real positive 

stuff.  Lawrence Briggs stated that since they moved from Abbeville to QSA we feel safer.  When 

you have outside activity going on during the game and the coaches and referees have to go 

outside and worry about that and the game is stopped for those people who paid to play ball.  At 

Henry, you don’t have to worry about outside activity.  You don’t need security guards because 

everybody respects one another.  We understand that this is about the kids.  We don’t have to 

worry about outside activity.  Phyllis Tomino stated that she has been involved with ball since 

1995.  Tommy was my son’s coach.  She has never left since then.  She is still involved with these 

kids.  She tries to get them off the street.  She lives on Kibbee Street so she sees what goes on.  

She tries her best to get them involved.  The problem is that once parents get involved with their 

kids and their kids are done with the program, they leave.  They don’t come back and help.  They 

don’t care about everybody else’s kids.  That is the difference.  She cares about everybody’s kids.  

She will continue to do it until she can’t go anymore.  She wants to be there for the kids to get 

them off the streets and not get into trouble.  Councilwoman Broussard stated the worst decision 

was to let Tommy go.  After that we had Jason and unfortunately, we loss him and it hasn’t been 

the same.  Looking to the future, will we bring back what we once had or is this arrangement with 

QSA permanent?  Lawrence Briggs stated if it comes back to Abbeville you will have to have a 

director who actually knows the kids on a personal level.  Tommy Picard stated that if you take it 

over, you can’t play Biddy basketball or Pony baseball because QSA has the boundaries of 

Vermilion Parish.  If you don’t have Biddy basketball then some people will not follow you.  Why 

doesn’t anybody go after football?  You went from 400 kids to 60 kids.  Nobody asks questions 

about that.  Shakelia Shelvin has been with the program for a long time.  She stepped away from 

the program after Jerry left.  The reason is because we have lost our children.  We have nothing 

right here that is tangible for our parents that can’t afford to go to Erath.  This is the biggest City 

in our Parish and we don’t have anything that is ours.  It should not be outsourced. 

 

-05 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to renew the 

contract with QSA.  The motion was put to a vote and the vote thereupon was as follows: 

 YEAS:  4(Plaisance, B. Broussard, Touchet, White) 

 NAYS:  1(T. Broussard) 

 ABSENT: 0 

 ABSTAIN: 0 

Therefore, the motion carried. 

 

Councilman Touchet stated there are more kids that are playing now than when we had it on our 

own.  We were always in the negative when we had the program as far as budget and we did not 

83



5 
 

have the product to show for it.  He would have been ok if we would have had the product and 

not making money.  It is not about making money.  We do have issues that we need to deal with.  

He had never heard any of these complaints before the last meeting.  As these issues come about, 

please reach out.  Come to the Recreation Board meetings.  Make sure that they know what is 

going on so they can come to us and let us know what we need to be aware of so that when those 

problems occur, we fix them.  If we see that they are not fixed, then we will have a track record 

throughout the year so that when it comes to contract time, it will be a better decision that we 

can make.  Can we get better?  Yes.  If you have concerns, bring it to our attention and let us work 

with QSA to make it happen.  There is not one kid that will not play if they want to.  We will find 

a way for that kid to play.  We need to work together.  If we work together, this will be a success.  

Councilman Plaisance stated that the easiest thing to do is complain and the hardest thing to do 

is to support any effort.   

 

Mayor Piazza stated we received three quotes for the insurance coverages we currently have with 

Risk Management, Inc.  Councilman Broussard and Ike have met with these agents.  Councilman 

Broussard stated that we have some good news this evening.  There is nothing better in the 

insurance industry than competition.  Competition resulted in us getting a better number for 

liability.  We have an opportunity to save significant money this year.  It is about $71,000.  RMI in 

Baton Rouge has come in with a $267,022.47 renewal.  Ike stated the other two bids we received 

were not apple to apples but were both very good.   

 

-06 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to renew the 

insurance coverages with Risk Management, Inc as of March 1, 2020 for $267,022.47.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor Piazza stated the other insurances are with Thomson, Smith & Leach.  We only received a 

renewal quotation from them.  We did have interest from another agency but they backed out.  

The renewal quote is $170,501.98. 

 

-07 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to approve the 

renewal offered by Thomson, Smith & Leach for insurance coverages effective March 1, 2020 for 

$170,501.98.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Municipal Board Reports 

 

Main Street report given by Charlene Beckett.  The Louisiana Main Street office wrote a grant to 

the Federal Government.  The Main Street communities across the State are able to apply for a 

$55,000 grant but it is very competitive.  It must be a commercial building, in a Main Street district 

and it must be listed in the National Register.  It must follow certain standards according to the 

federal government.  You also have to enter into a 10-year preservation easement with the federal 

government.  There are some target buildings that fit this criteria so she dropped off the 

information about the grant opportunity to them.  Six buildings would be this year and the other 

six would be next year.  Vacant buildings take a higher priority.  We have 14 memorial benches 

now with the memorial bench project.  Two benches have been delivered but not installed and we 

have one bench on order.  The Cajun Caravan breakfast and Downtown tour will take place on 

Thursday, March 19th at 9:00 AM.  The schedule for the spring Sounds on the Square is:  March 

19th Donny Broussard & the Louisiana Stars, March 26th Willie Tee & Cypress Band with special 

guest Lynn August and April 2nd The Beau Young Band.  The Sicilian Celebration will take place at 

the Blacksmith Shop Museum & Heritage Center on Saturday, March 21st.  The next Abbeville 

Farmers and Artisan Market will be held on Saturday, March 21st at Magdalen Square. 

 

84



6 
 

Keep Abbeville Report given by Charlene Beckett and Liz Gremilion.  Charlene thanked 

Councilwoman White for creating the Facebook page for Keep Abbeville Beautiful.  Liz discussed 

the Louisiana Garden Club Federation cleanest city contest.  The district contest will be the week 

of March 23-27.  We think the judges will be here either on the 23rd or the 24th.  We have a 

scheduled cleanup on Saturday, March 14th beginning at 9 AM.  We will meet at the City Hall 

parking lot.  We are asking for your support to assist us with this.  If we win district, the State 

Cleanest City contest is the week of April 27-May 1st.  We have a big cleanup scheduled for 

Saturday April 25th at 9 AM.  We will meet at the City Hall parking lot.  This is a community project.   

It helps our community.  We want it clean.  If it is clean, we have more tourist and people that are 

proud of their City.  That is our goal.  The route will be the same as last year.  Charlene stated the 

Streetscape Project will actually work in our favor.  We can tell the judges that we are doing this 

to make it handicap accessible and to beautify.  Charlene stated there is a new program called 

Love the Boot.  It is a week long project that will focus on beautification and cleaning up.  There 

are some requirements to be involved in the State’s Love the Boot Campaign.  You have to create 

a steering committee.  The members of our steering committee are:  Winnie LeBlanc, Brittany 

Lopez, Pam Wallace, Patsy Hebert, Marietta Clark, Liz Gremilion and Charlene Beckett.  We have 

had three meetings so far.  The Love the Boot campaign is the week of April 20-26th. We have 

created projects for this week.  Using grant funds, we will purchase Litzee Litter books.  On 

Monday, we will distribute water bottles to the 3rd graders and Litzee Litter books to the 1st 

graders.  On Tuesday we will have breakfast with the Lieutenant Governor and distribute canvas 

grocery bags to 3rd graders.  Wednesday is Clean Waterways so we have recruited Judge Edwards 

to organize a cleanup either in the coulee, drains or waterways.  On Thursday we will distribute 

the Timmy the Tumble Bag books to 2nd graders.  On Friday it is National Arbor Day so we will 

plant a tree at the library.  On Saturday we will have our big Great American Cleanup in 

preparation for the State contest.  Sunday will be reduce, reuse and recyle. 

 

Ike stated there is no report for the Abbeville Planning Commission as they have not had a 

meeting.  They had a meeting two weeks ago and the item requiring the Council’s attention has 

been taken care of. 

 

Abbeville Parks and Recreation Board report given by Denise Mire.  We are swearing two new 

board members Thursday at 11 AM.  They are Akeem Lewis and Felicia Williams.  We have been 

trying to get the bottoms of the trees trimmed at all the different parks around town.  We have 

Godchaux and McKinley Scott park left.  Marlon’s crew has been helping us on Friday when they 

can to get to the higher branches.  There are a lot of schools practicing at Comeaux Park.  They 

are the Abbeville High boys and girls, J. H. Williams Middle School’s girls’ team, Harvestime boys 

and girls, Vermilion Catholic boys, and Mount Carmel’s 6th grade and 7-8th grade.  Some teams 

are beginning their games next week.  The gates are really bad at Shelby Chester Field.  We have 

received the quotes and the Mayor has authorized us to have that fixed.  LuQuette Field was 

broken into two weekends in a row.  We had that repaired.  They cut an L-shaped hole in the fence 

at Sellers’ Field.  There was no reason to do that because those gates on that field were wide 

open.  That has also been repaired.  She has gone around to all the parks in town to create an 

inventory list for everything in the park and any needed repairs.   Vermilion Catholic soccer has 

been playing their home games at our football field.  They have just finished their season.  

Brandon started on the goals yesterday.  Aurris goes to every park every day to pick up trash.  

There has been so much rain so the grass has been growing.  Mayor Piazza stated that he told 

Marlon to take down the volleyball net at Mckinley Scott Park because it was so torn.  He never 

ever saw one kid playing volleyball out there.  Denise has compiled a list and he has it.  If you need 

to do something in your park let him know. 

 

85



7 
 

-08 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to approve the 

payment estimate for partial payment number 1 in the amount of $13,060.00 payable to R. J. 

Broussard General Contractors, Inc. for the sewer collection system extension for Carolyn Drive.  

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-09 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to award the 

contract for the abatement of rubbish for 609 N. Gertrude to the low bidder, Tony Landry, in the 

amount of $550.00.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Touchet/B. Broussard 

Resolution R20-02 

 

A resolution requesting DOTD to perform drainage work at selected sites on Louisiana Highway 

14. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor Mark Piazza 

- At the last Police Jury meeting of the Public Works Committee that he sits on, it was 

brought up once again that the Police Jury has passed a motion to no longer be in the 

garbage bin business.  The garbage bin they provide to businesses will no longer be 

available to those businesses.  This will affect a lot of businesses.  The Police Jury thought 

that it would be cheaper but the businesses he has spoken to say it will cost them more.  

It is very discouraging to see the Police Jury get out of that business.  The first thing that 

he would like us to do is have Ike come up with a new ordinance governing garbage bins.  

This would regulate where the bins would be placed, what type of bin they can use, if it 

has to have some type of enclosure and how will they pick it up.  We need to be proactive 

and get ahead of this.  We could possibly consider a permit requirement so we will know 

where these bins are.  This ordinance will be presented at the next committee meeting. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Piazza declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk     Mark Piazza 

Secretary-Treasurer     Mayor 

 

 

 

86



1 
 

City of Abbeville 

Regular Meeting 

March 3, 2020 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met in regular session on March 3, 2020 at 5:30 

P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room located at 101 North State Street, 

with the Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor, presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members, Francis Plaisance, Terry Broussard, Brady 

Broussard, Jr., Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Roslyn 

White   

 

Members Absent:  None   

 

Also, Present:   Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

    Jason Hebert, Police Lieutenant 

    Jonathan Touchet, Police Lieutenant 

    Ike Funderburk, City Attorney 

Clay Menard, Public Works Director 

Denise Mire, Park Director 

Gene Sellers, Engineer 

Richard Primeaux, Engineer 

Brac Salyer, Wildlife & Fisheries  

Pastor Osborne Taylor 

Pastor Crystal Randle, A New Chapter P U S H 

Pastor James Broussard, A New Chapter P U S H 

Donovan Davis, New Chapter P U S H 

Drevian Evans, S T A R 

        

Mayor Piazza asked Pastor Crystal Randle to lead the assembly in prayer.   Mayor Piazza asked 

Mr. Ike Funderburk to lead the assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Terry Broussard approve the 

appointment of Angela Lemoine to the position of temporary dispatcher with the Abbeville Police 

Department.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to approve 

the probational appointment of Heather Chambers to the position of Police Officer with the 

Abbeville Police Department.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Pastor Crystal Randle was at the meeting to invite the Mayor and City Council to the Partnership 

for Change Conference Vermilion.  Councilwoman Broussard stated Pastor Randle has informed 

her that someone with the Governor’s office will there for this Conference.  Pastor Randle stated 

that on behalf of A New Chapter P U S H organization they would like to invite the Mayor and City 

Council.  She introduced the President, Pastor James Broussard and Donovan Davis.  On March 

18, 2020 they are having a Partnership for Change Conference.  The doors open at 3:00 PM and 

the event begins at 3:30 PM.  It takes all of us to come together to create change.  She was elated 

that they would host this conference in Vermilion Parish.  This is the third year they have hosted 

the conference but this is the first year they host it in Vermilion Parish.  There are a lot of things 

they want to incorporate in this parish.  We are so grateful for the other parishes that are coming 

together to join with us.  The purpose is to bring the churches, non-profits, employers, law 

87



2 
 

enforcement, local government and other groups and organizations within the community in an 

effort to compile together resources to make available to those that will be targeted in the 

initiative.  The individuals targeted in this initiative are the youth, the young and old people as 

well as those in transition from incarceration back into our community.  Our plans are to provide 

mentoring as well as counseling.  We know that to change the person, you have to change the 

mind.  You change the mind state, you change the person.  Therefore, we believe heavily in 

mentoring and counseling.  This is one thing we want to introduce to Vermilion Parish.  We want 

to assist the Vermilion Parish School System with trained, skilled and reliable mentors to be 

assigned to schools throughout the parish to mentor struggling students.  She works with 

struggling students so she knows there is a need.  They want to be able to provide a meeting 

place, safe haven, for youth that are at risk through an after-school program that will allow them 

additional opportunities for mentoring and to help fill the void some of the students have.  We 

want to provide holistic support to the offenders and returning citizens by essential preparatory 

training which would occur pre-release, post-release and after-release.  Pastor Broussard stated 

they are A New Chapter P U S H and they work in St. Mary, Vermilion, Iberia and they are starting 

to go into St. Martinville.  The conference is to bring all their networks together so we can bring 

a change.  If we can change our people then we can change our community and then we can 

change our settings and goals.  We have worked with the Iberia Parish School Board, with 

probation and parole and with the government in Louisiana.  We want to bring people back into 

society and back to our community.  We need to teach them how to live all over again.  That is 

why our organization is called “A New Chapter”.  We begin to bring a new chapter to them and 

we want to bring them hope.  We are doing this through the Ark of the Covenant Church in 

Abbeville.  Pastor Randle is one of our board members with the committee.   There are a lot of 

programs we have in place to bring to Vermilion.  One is the Brother to Brother program where 

we begin to teach them how to get back into society coming off of drugs.  It is like you are starting 

all over again.  These are some of the programs that we will initiate here.  We also have a program 

with struggling youth that we are planning to do.  We are looking forward to working with you 

and we invite you to come on the 18th of March at 3:00 PM at the Ark of the Covenant Church.  

Our guest speaker will be someone from the Governor’s office out of Baton Rouge.  Councilman 

Broussard stated that he commends Pastor Randle, Pastor Broussard and everyone here tonight.  

You are among the most powerful influencers of young people and thanked them for carrying 

that torch for a great need throughout society.  Without mentoring, without education, and 

without people who step up when it is not their children, this cannot happen.  Pastor Randle stated 

it is a $45.00 donation per adult to attend the conference and food will be provided.  Pastor 

Broussard stated that money will go back into the community.   

 

Councilwoman Broussard introduced Drevian Evans.  Mr. Evans represents S T A R, Stay True and 

Rise.  He wanted to discuss activities that we will be bringing to McKinley Scott Park to bring 

families and kids together.  She has been meeting with him at the library on Saturdays.  They want 

to implement a family day at the Park and get the community involved.  They would like the 

blessing of the Mayor and City Council to do this at least three to four times a year.  They are also 

interested in working with the youth.  We will start targeting the five to six-year olds.  Mr. Evans 

stated he is from Abbeville.  He went to Abbeville High School.  He sees the change of people 

wanting to do better and those not doing so good in our community.  We are the voice of the 

youth.  Everyone in our organization is under 25-years old.  Some of us graduated high school and 

some others went on to college. We are trying to spread positivity back into our community.  We 

are asking for your blessing on April 11th.  We will be doing a Family Fun Day in McKinley Scott 

Park.  That is the park we played in when we were growing up.  It is like we are giving back to our 

own community.  It is a free event.  There will be free food, games and other things to spread a 

little positivity in our community.  Councilman Plaisance stated it is very refreshing to hear this 

tonight.  This is the second thing here tonight that is good for our community and our kids.  We 

88



3 
 

have to do something with our kids.  It is wonderful to see you guys standing up here and taking 

a role.  He complimented Councilwoman Broussard for initiating this activity.  It is a good thing 

and he will support it 100%.  Mayor Piazza stated that he is encouraged to see some activities 

planned at McKinley Scott Park.  He has been discouraged lately.  He rides the town weekly and 

on weekends.  He just doesn’t see kids outside anymore and we spend a lot of money on our parks 

to try to get the kids out and give them something to do.  Whatever we can do to get more kids 

and have them utilize out parks is a good thing.  Councilwoman Broussard asked if she needed a 

special event permit.  Mayor Piazza stated if Councilwoman Broussard is spearheading the 

venture then no permit would be needed.  Councilwoman Broussard stated she will be out there 

and will be taking responsibility for the event.  It will be reasonable hours like 10-4 or 12-5.  We 

hope to form a few basketball teams to allow them to play each other on weekends.  Mayor Piazza 

stated those are basic activities that we want out there anyway.  If you let us know, we may want 

to pass by during the event.   

 

-03 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to deviate from 

the agenda to add emergency repairs for collapsed culverts on Airport Road.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

-04 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to approve the 

minutes from the February 4, 2020 and the February 18, 2020 Personnel Interviews, the February 

4, 2020 Committee meeting and the February 4, 2020 regular City Council meetings.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor Piazza asked if there were any comments from the public on any agenda item prior to 

action.  There were none. 

 

-05 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to approve the 

estimate from Glenn Lege Construction in the amount of $128,956.00 for asphalt patching of 84 

road cuts due to repairs to water and sewer lines.  The invoice will be paid as follows:  50% City 

Sales Tax Fund and 50% from the Utility System Reserve account.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

Councilman Plaisance presented an update on LaFitte Drive-In Park pertaining to the new signage, 

announcement of grant award for walking trail and the fishing demonstration sponsored by the 

Louisiana Department of Wildlife and Fisheries.  We are in the seventh year of development of 

this park.  The last picnic table was just sold to Whittington Veterinary Clinic.   He purchased it to 

have a plaque in honor of the young Broussard fellow that was recently killed in an automobile 

accident.  Raising Cane’s sponsored the new signage at the dog park.  Pet Sense has purchased 

two benches that will go in on both sides of the dog park.  They haven’t been installed yet because 

they have to be installed in concrete and Richard hasn’t had a chance to do it plus the ground is 

too wet.  Since January 4, 2020 there have been 271 cars.  We only open the park on weekends.  

People are very excited about the dog park.  He put up some of his discretionary funds to complete 

the fence between the two parks (large dog and small dog).  Bayou Fencing donated the fencing 

around the pump.   One of the problems we are having now is that we need to put the fence up 

on the west side so the dogs don’t run into the woods.  He is currently looking for a sponsor for 

that.  We already have the fencing material.  We want to try to get this done as soon as possible.  

On the 19th of March, he and the Mayor and Clay will be meeting with the Lieutenant Governor, 

Billy Nungesser, to show him the master plan for the park.  That is where we are right now.  We 

have a fishing demonstration coming up.  He introduced Brac Sayler, with Wildlife and Fisheries.  

He is responsible for the killing of the fish that was in the pond initially.  They put a chemical to 

kill the fish so we could start over again.  Wildlife & Fisheries paid for that.  They also stocked 

89



4 
 

5,000 brim, 1,000 chinquapin, 1,000 bass and 2,000 catfish at this point.  Wildlife & Fisheries paid 

for these fish.  The City bought 1,000 bass from Shepherd’s Farm for $600.00.  The City crew 

cleaned up the west side of the pond last Friday.  Mr. Brac Sayler stated he has been working with 

Councilman Plaisance on this pond for 5 years.   This pond was dug when Lowe’s came to town.  

They dug a huge pit so they could use the dirt to build up the foundation for their store so they 

wouldn’t flood.  When you do that and leave a pond sitting for multiple years at a time, you will 

attract unwanted species of fish such as bullheads, gars and other things that are undesirable as 

far as a fishing pond goes.  Our standard protocol, if you will start a pond all over, it to get rid of 

the fish that are in there beforehand.  You need to get rid of the gar, especially.  A gar will grow 

very big in two years and he will eat as much as he possibly can.  He is altering the food chain you 

want to establish in a fishing pond.  That is the reason we used the chemical to knock the fish 

population out and start over.  That is when the well was put in and we started pumping water.  

This is going to be a fabulous fishing pond.  It is for the kids and adults and for those adults that 

wish they were still kids.  We have blue gill, chinquapin, catfish and wide-mouth bass.   On the 

morning of April 17th, the Department of Wildlife & Fisheries will be holding a Family Fish Fest.  

We will have some people from Baton Rouge come over and set up fishing stations for the kids.  

If they want to learn how to cast there will be a station for that.  If they want to learn how to tie 

fishing knots, there will be a station for that.  We want to educate the kids as much as possible to 

show them how to fish and educate them about fish.  The idea is to promote the LaFitte Park pond 

and to get the kids excited about fishing.  We are working to get sponsors to get door prizes.  We 

will do the best we can.  It won’t be as big a deal as the one in Baton Rouge but it will be exciting.  

He is working with the Agriculture folks and the 4-H people.  When he was a kid, he remembers 

riding his bike with a stringer full of fish in one hand and a fishing pole in one hand.  He would go 

to his grandma’s and they would clean the fish and fry them.  That is what he wants every kid to 

experience.  It gives them an opportunity to catch their dinner and they can fry those fish with 

their family.  They had a great day fishing and they also provided dinner for their family.  He is 

very excited about the event and it will be fun.  He will be there and other biologists from the 

department will be here too.  One or two of the enforcement agents will be there too so people 

can understand and to help the public’s fear of these agents.  He wants them there to answer 

questions and to explain the rules.  We will also put more catfish stock in the pond a couple of 

days before because we want every child to be able to catch a fish right on the spot.  We want to 

promote our natural resources and promote fishing and hunting.  He is thrilled to be associated 

with this event.  He is a resident of Abbeville and he will take his little girl fishing there when she 

is old enough.  Adults 16 years and old will need a fishing license.  Fishing regulations do apply 

just like they do in the rest of the State.  Councilman Touchet asked about enforcement.  Mr. 

Sayler stated that Wildlife & Fisheries would be in charge of enforcement however since you have 

no motor boat traffic on the pond, there really won’t be much of a necessity for this like other 

places.  He hopes to maintain the pond on the honor system.  This is a public water body and they 

will maintain enforcement just like they do at Girard Park.  Councilman Touchet asked about the 

safety of the fishing area.  Mr. Sayler stated that he spoke with their manager over the “Get out 

and Fish” program, and there has never been a problem because the parents are usually actively 

involved when kids come out to fish.  You can put up some signage that tells parents to stay with 

their child.  We need to take some space and rope off areas that are unsafe and we will promote 

areas of the pond more to the west/southwest side that have very good footing.  We need to 

make sure the kids are encouraged to go to that area.  There has never been a problem across 

the state and no insurance has been required.  It is about the parent wanting to be actively 

involved with their children.  We will enforce that concept as people show up to fish.  There has 

never been an incident and that pond is not that deep.  Councilwoman White asked if Mr. Sayler 

has seen the pond before they filled it up with water.  It is very steep.  Mr. Sayler stated that he 

has been there and has seen it.  Councilwoman White stated that it is steep and not sloped like a 

fishing pond.  That is the problem.  Mr. Sayler stated that certain portions are very steep and we 

90



5 
 

will not promote those areas for fishing.  We will only promote the southwest and the south 

corner.  There is level access there.  That is closest to the gate anyway.  People will come into the 

gate and go fishing to the property closest to the gate.  We will not allow fishing on the north 

bank of the pond because that is steeper.  There are a lot of places where we deal with these types 

of situations and there have never been a problem.  If we put up flagging and signage then that 

is the best we can do.  We will tell people where they can fish.  Councilwoman White stated then 

if somebody doesn’t obey that and an accident happens when we have been repeatedly told not 

to allow fishing from the banks without a pier.  Mr. Sayler stated that he was unaware of that.  

He suggested that we would have to confer with our legal counsel on that.  Councilman Plaisance 

stated we should not have fishing on the north side but the west side is just sloped down into the 

water.  Mayor Piazza stated that we are only talking here about a one-day event sponsored by 

Wildlife & Fisheries.  They will be out there regulating where the fishing will occur and giving these 

children an opportunity to go out there and catch a fish with Wildlife & Fisheries agents there.   

They will make sure people are supposed to be fishing where they are supposed to be fishing and 

doing what they are supposed to be doing.  Some of these questions may be concerns about future 

fishing at the pond and we are really not talking about establishing those parameters right now.  

We will talk about that before we will open it up to the public.  This is a pioneer program and a 

start to give kids an opportunity for an interest in fishing and to see if we can fish in a very safe 

environment.  Our ultimate goal is to have a couple of fishing piers.  He and Brac has talked about 

that on several occasions.  These piers would have railings and people would go out there on a 

wooden dock.  Brac will help try to get us a grant for that.  Until that happens, we will have to 

closely monitor if and when we allow fishing, what type of fishing and where they can fish.  We 

have Ms. Bridget Levy sitting right behind Brac tonight and she is our person at the Park.  She is 

doing a fantastic job on Saturday’s and Sunday’s.  That is the only two days that the park is open.  

When we have fishing like this, the dog park would be closed at that time so you wouldn’t have 

people fishing and people in the dog park.  All that can be discussed at a later time.  Basically, 

tonight we are here just to announce this special one-day event sponsored by the City and Wildlife 

& Fisheries.  It is wonderful opportunity for the children in our community and we want to thank 

Wildlife & Fisheries for taking an interest in our community and coming down here to host this 

event.  We really appreciate Brac’s interest in our community and the whole park.  Councilman 

Touchet asked Bridget if she knew how many visitors are from his district.  Mayor Piazza stated 

she only has numbers and hasn’t been taking names.  Councilwoman Broussard asked if the City 

decides to do fishing once a month, if it is Bridget’s job to monitor and count who is coming in or 

would she be where there is fishing.  Councilman Touchet stated we would need additional 

personnel.  Mayor Piazza stated that those issues need to be discussed and we need to be out in 

the open with them and we need to be upfront with them and we need to discuss that as an 

administration and a City Council.  You have to depend on your Park Director, Denise Mire who is 

here tonight, and Councilman Plaisance, who is the chairman of the Park Committee for the 

Council and who also established a “Friends of LaFitte Drive-In Park”, to come up with these rules 

and guidelines.  They can decide who will be out there watching these people and these kids when 

they will be out there fishing.  Those are the people we need to ask the questions to and those are 

the people that need to come back with a plan and a proposal to present to the Council on if we 

will provide fishing, when it will be and how it will be accomplished.  We have guys like Brac who 

are willing to help us and that is a tremendous benefit.   

 

-06 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to award the 

contract to repair and secure the structure located at 407 Clark Street to the low bidder, Russell 

Alexis, in the amount of $1,500.00.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor Piazza stated we had Guidry’s Construction camera the culverts from Young Broussard 

Road right at the corner of North Airport Road to the State Highway going South.  There are four 

91



6 
 

different places where the huge culverts collapsed.  One place is very serious and there are three 

other places that are not quite as serious but do need to be repaired.  At the last City Council 

meeting we passed a resolution requesting the State to clean out the culverts on the By-pass right 

there at the corner of the By-Pass and Airport.   This is the next phase in a series of steps to try 

and alleviate some of the flooding north of there.  We have already completed another area of 

this project.  The Police Jury dug out the ditches on the east side from Young Broussard Road all 

the way to the north.  This emergency repair cost estimate is about $20,000.00.   

 

-07 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to approve 

the emergency repair work on the culverts as discussed.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Gene Sellers, Engineer 

- Gave an update on the Downtown Sidewalk project.  The work began in January and most 

of that month was spent on the handicapped ramp in front of Black’s.  More work was 

completed in February.  We have completed the estimate for January and February and 

are processing that tomorrow through the State.  They are anticipating a May or June 

completion. 

 

Richard Primeaux, Engineer 

- Reported on the drainage project.  We hope to present a cost estimate to you at your next 

meeting.  We have a couple of hurdles we need to cross.  One is at Lafayette/East Street.  

There is a spaghetti of fiber optic cables.  We have to try and negotiate around those.   

- We are trying to schedule a meeting with the drainage board to discuss cleaning out the 

channel. 

 

Clay Menard, Public Works Director 

- The flushing machine is being repaired so we are not able to flush right now. 

- We will be starting our summer schedule next week. District A and C will have Monday 

and Wednesday, District B and D will have Tuesday and Thursday and the Councilman at 

Large will have Friday.  We have a full crew. 

 

Mayor Mark Piazza 

- Had an opportunity to meet and go to the business that is providing the security cameras 

throughout town yesterday.  He met with the gentleman and viewed some of the footage 

that he has of our community.  He wanted to compliment Lieutenant Touchet and 

Lieutenant Hebert who both work very closely with this gentleman to provide security.  It 

is working for the most part and it will be something that will benefit us in the future.  

Hopefully we can solve some of the crime.  He was very impressed with the facility and the 

owner has invited the Council to tour the facility. 

 

Jason Hebert, Police Lieutenant 

- Thanked the Council for the new hires tonight on behalf of the Police Chief. 

- Chief Spearman is in Lake Charles at a conference. 

 

Councilman Brady Broussard, Jr. 

- Thanked Police Juror Ronald Darby for utilizing his road fund in the City of Abbeville.  The 

job on S. Lyman Street is beautiful.  He appreciates this and doing work in the City of 

Abbeville is a wonderful thing. 

 

 

 

92



7 
 

Councilman Francis Plaisance 

- Thanked Brac Sayler, a graduate of the University of Tennessee Biology Institute, who 

decided to move to Louisiana.  He is glad he is here and has a passion for the kids as far 

as the work he is doing.  His wife is in charge of all the endangered species for the State of 

Louisiana.  Both of them work very hard.  They have a brand-new baby girl.  He was stuck 

in traffic but he made it here tonight.  Thank you Brac for being here tonight.  We 

appreciate it so much. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Piazza declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk     Mark Piazza 

Secretary-Treasurer     Mayor 

 

 

93



1 
 

City of Abbeville 

Emergency Special Meeting 

March 19, 2020 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met in emergency special session on March 19, 

2020 at 11:30 A.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room located at 101 North 

State Street, with the Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor, presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members, Francis Plaisance, Terry Broussard, Brady 

Broussard, Jr., Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Roslyn 

White   

 

Members Absent:  None   

 

Also, Present:   Ike Funderburk, City Attorney 

Clay Menard, Public Works Director 

Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

Bill Spearman, Police Chief 

Marilyn Mitchell 

Jim Quackenbos 

        

Mayor Piazza called the emergency special meeting to order.  He thanked the City Council and 

everyone else who was present.  He stated there are a lot of rumors out there and basically there 

have been 2 confirmed cases in Lafayette.  There are no other confirmed cases other than those 

two.  There are a lot of tests that have been sent off and we can expect some additional cases to 

materialize.   There are no other directives from the Governor’s office other than the ones that 

have already been implemented.  The directive was about the closure of restaurants and those 

types of things.  There have no additional closures or mandates from the Governor’s office at this 

time.  You hear a lot of rumors out there but this comes straight from the Department of Health 

and Hospitals.  They are asking that everyone please follow the guidelines of the testing 

procedure.   There are only two testing sites.  They do not want everybody to run to the Cajundome 

just because they feel bad or have a little bit of a fever.  What they want everyone to do is follow 

protocol.  The protocol is to first call your primary care physician.  They will screen you and tell 

you what you need to do.  If you don’t have a primary care physician, you need to call the 311 

emergency hotline number.  Somebody will answer your questions and screen you over the phone.  

That is available to every parish in Acadiana.  The screening sites are also available to every parish 

in Acadiana.  If you don’t meet certain criteria and aren’t screen first then you will not be tested.  

They are trying to establish a testing site in New Iberia, one in Evangeline Parish and a second one 

in Lafayette Parish.  Those are still days away because there are not enough testing kits at this 

time to go around.  DHH is the head of the task force for this and all this is going through them.  

If you feel bad then you need to stay home and don’t go to work and then follow the protocol to 

get tested.   

 

The first item on the agenda is to adopt a resolution declaring a state of emergency exists, thus 

suspending compliance with the applicable City ordinances and the public bid law.  The public law 

has already been suspended by the Governor.  Mayor Piazza is requesting the ability to do what 

he needs to do in the case of an emergency as far as purchasing goes and the distribution of 

personnel to continue to provide our City services that we need to do.  We can assure of citizens 

that our City services are going to continue and we need to be able to do that expeditiously and 

not wait to get authorization at a City Council meeting.  He needs authority to waive some of the 

ordinances as he sees fit that restrict him from doing these day to day activities.   Mayor Piazza 

94



2 
 

stated that we took some initial steps.  The lobby at City Hall has been closed.  We are fortunate 

that we are spread out in individual offices here.  There are no more than two people per office.  

We are monitoring anyone that is allowed in City Hall.  They have to have an appointment.  We 

are conducting all other business through the drive-thru window.  The personnel in the field have 

been informed that they cannot exceed the limit of 10 people per group.  They are going to make 

arrangements and they will not be eating or working together.  The grass cutting crew has been 

split up into two different groups and they are going to work at different times.  One group goes 

to work at 7 and the other group gets to work at 7:30.  We have also separated the crews at the 

Utility Building so that they don’t gather in groups.  They stay in restricted area.  He met with the 

Police Chief and the Fire Chief.  They know that their public buildings are restricted and off limits 

to anyone that is not on duty.  We are fortunate that we have a few fire stations and they are 

spread out.  They know what they need to do to remain compliant.  The Police only have one 

building and they have to perform their duties.  They are prohibiting the public from going inside 

the building.  They have a separate entrance for booking somebody.  They have sanitizer, 

disinfectant to spray the unit and gloves.  One of the directives from the Governor gives the Chief 

Law Enforcement Agent of the municipality or parish, meaning the Chief or the Sheriff, to make 

the determination regarding a curfew.  That will be implemented in accordance with the Chief’s 

recommendation.  Chief Spearman stated we have always had a curfew for minors.  WalMart will 

be adjusting their hours soon so they will close earlier.  This will help with the curfew.  Mayor 

Piazza stated that we have made some provisions to keep our parks open at designated time so 

people will have some type of quality of life.   

 

Plaisance/White 

Resolution R20-03 

 

A resolution authorizing a state of emergency as a result of the COVID-19 Pandemic. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor Piazza stated he and Ike were on a conference call this morning with Louisiana Energy and 

Power Authority (LEPA).  The City of Abbeville is a member of LEPA because we own our electrical 

system.  Because we own our electrical system, we are part of a select group of municipalities 

throughout the State.  LUS, Natchitoches, Minden, Rayne, Kaplan and Marksville are a few 

member cities that are in the same situation as Abbeville.  They were all on the conference 

pertaining to the disconnection of utilities and the Public Service Commissioner’s restriction of 

that.  Ike stated the Public Service Commission (PSC) regulates for profit electrical utility 

companies of the State.  The PSC has issued an executive order that prohibits those companies 

that are under his jurisdiction from cutting off customers for non-payment.  The question 

becomes: Are we regulated by the PSC to the point that we cannot cut of someone for non-

payment?  The answer to that is no.   The PSC does not govern LEPA or its members.  We are not 

controlled by the PSC.  The next question was:  What are we going to do?  There was some spirited 

debate during the conference call.  Terrebonne has elected to follow the PSC’s directive and so 

has LUS.  LUS and Terrebonne are in a different position as many others including Abbeville and 

Kaplan.  If we do not get paid for our utilities then that cuts off our ability to pay our personnel 

like Firemen and Police.  It limits us to be able to provide all the services we have to provide in 

order to maintain the quality of life in this community.  Several Mayors spoke about the fact that 

if someone does not pay their bill then we have to cut you off.  We can’t continue to let them add 

on and add on and add on and dig themselves into a trench that they will never get out of.  But, 

for someone who has been laid off or has had their hours cut back and they either have now 

and/or are hoping to get unemployment compensation and they don’t have the cash flow to make 

their payment, through no fault of their own, because they are not getting a check, we could 

95



3 
 

waive the disconnect fee one time when they reconnect.  That is how several of the Mayors were 

leaning.  Alexandria is not going to charge a disconnect fee.  St. Martinville is waiving the late 

fees.  We have to walk a fine line of being responsive to our constituents and us being responsible 

for maintaining the cash flow that we need in order to support our constituents.  We cannot place 

the City of Abbeville at risk come two or three months down the road to be unable to make payroll 

and unable to provide services.  Mayor Piazza stated that we are not governed by the PSC’s 

directive because we are different.  It seemed the consensus of some of the smaller municipalities 

like Abbeville, Kaplan, Rayne, Welsh, Plaquemine and others during the conference call that we 

just don’t have the luxury of the bigger cities and we don’t have the surplus to be able to afford 

to allow customers not to pay their bills.  If we don’t collect these utility bills then we will not be 

able to pay our personnel like the Firemen and Policemen.  That is a bigger crisis than we are 

faced with now.  We have to have policemen on the streets.  We have to be able to pay them and 

we won’t be able to pay them if we don’t collect our utility bills.  That is the bottom line and but 

he does think some concessions should be made.  He recommends a one-time waiver of the 

disconnect fee and a one-time waiver of the late fee.  This will be one-time only on both billing 

cycles.  That will take place immediately.  The first late cycle takes place tomorrow so we need to 

know this today.  If we waive the late fee, that will save our customers 10% on their bill and it 

would not burden the City at this point.  This would not strap us financially and it would help the 

citizens.  He also recommends looking at some hardship cases for some select individuals like the 

elderly on fixed incomes since they don’t get their checks until the 3rd, that we allow a couple of 

extra days from the three days that we have in the ordinance.  Councilman Touchet stated that 

this situation could last some time.  Ike stated the policy can always be adjusted further down the 

road.  Councilwoman White asked if we would disconnect people for non-payment.  Mayor Piazza 

stated that we would disconnect people for non-payment because we will run short on cash.  We 

can handle everyone on an individual basis and allow a few extra days.  Councilwoman Broussard 

stated she wishes there was a way to work around it for a month, but she understands.  Mayor 

Piazza stated we don’t have an answer if the loss of revenues is something that FEMA and the 

Stafford Act will reimburse us for.  We don’t know that answer today.  It was discussed on the 

conference call but there was no answer there.  We hope that will happen and we can make a 

different decision at a later date.  Councilman Broussard stated that we have a fiduciary 

responsibility to keep the City running.  Mayor Piazza stated we will monitor what other LEPA 

cities our size are doing.  This is an evolving situation and things could change from today.  We 

want to be uniform with other LEPA cities our size and situation.  Maybe we will find out later we 

can get some funding from FEMA and we will be able to make a different decision but we just 

don’t know this right now.  This is the reason for taking it one step at a time.  Councilwoman 

White asked if a concession of not disconnecting water service would be considered for sanitary 

issues.  People need to be able to wash their hands and bathe. Mayor Piazza stated that is a very 

good point and the LEPA organization strictly deals with electricity so we did not talk about that 

but it would have to be considered.  We have to be unified in this action and he will rely heavily 

on the advice of the City Council on the case by case hardships because you know your 

constituents on a personal basis.  We will look at it from cycle to cycle on the current conditions 

at the time. 

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to approve 

the three recommendations pertaining to disconnection of utilities for non-payment of bills as 

presented by the Mayor:  To have a one-time waiver of the disconnect fee for both cycles, a one-

time waiver of the late fee for both cycles and to allow a few extra days outside of our ordinance 

for those who have hardship cases.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

 

96



4 
 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Piazza declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Mark Piazza 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

97



 1 

City of Abbeville 

Committee Meeting  

March 3, 2020 

 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met for a committee meeting on March 3, 

2020 at 5:15 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room located at 101 

North State Street, with the Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor, presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members Francis Plaisance, Terry Broussard, Brady 

Broussard, Jr., Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Roslyn 

White  

 

Members Absent: None 

 

Also Present: Ike Funderburk, City Attorney 

 Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

 Lieutenant Jonathan Touchet 

 Richard Primeaux, Engineer 

  

     

Mayor Piazza stated we are here for an Ordinance Committee meeting chaired by 

Councilwoman Terry Broussard. We only have one item on the agenda. He asked if there 

were any public comments on any agenda item.  There were none so he turned the floor over 

to Councilwoman Broussard. 

 

Councilwoman Broussard stated we will discuss an ordinance to revise and reorganize 

Chapter 15.5-Solid Waste Ordinance.  She asked Ike to explain the ordinance. 

 

Ike stated when we first adopted the solid waste ordinance, we took the Vermilion Parish 

Police Jury’s ordinance and modified it to fit our situation.  We paralleled the Police Jury’s 

ordinance because they were collecting the tax and providing all of the services.  We did this 

at their request.  Times have changed.  The Police Jury will no longer be providing pickup for 

non-residential garbage bins.  He has made the necessary changes.  We divided the chapter 

into three stages.  A. are rules applicable to both residential and non-residential collection.  

That is a renumbering and addition of some definitions and making some slight modifications.  

B. is the portion of the original ordinance that dealt just with residential service.  It has 

virtually no changes other than renumbering.  Part C are rules that are applicable to multi-

residential units, commercial units and industrial units.  This is where the wholesale changes 

are.  The way this is set up is to allow collection companies to do pickups within our 

corporate limits if they receive a permit from our permit department authorizing them to do 

so.  They would pay a one-time fee of $5 per bin that they pick up.  They will provide us with a 

list of all the addresses that they collect.  They will update this annually or at the request of 

the permit department.  There is a provision for the location of bins so we don’t have bins that 

are out in the public right-of-way.  The Public Works Director will inspect to make sure the 

bins are properly located.  The businesses and apartment complexes have certain obligations 

to maintain their bins in a sanitary condition.  The obligations of the collection agent are that 

they have to provide commercial grade bins to their customers.  The City has the right to 

inspect and condemn a bin if it is found to be defective.  We will send notice to the collection 

agency giving them 15 days to rectify this.  If they refuse to do so, they will be imposed with a 

civil fine.  Mayor Piazza stated the meat of the ordinance is all about the location of the bins 

and about them maintaining the bins and the right-of-way if the bin has to be placed in the 

right-of-way.  Clay will be responsible for getting with these businesses as they get their 

permit to make sure they put it on their property if that is possible.  If they don’t have that 

ability, they will have to put it somewhere that does not obstruct traffic and if their trucks 

make ruts then they will be responsible for repairing that not us.  They bins cannot be 

overflowing.  We were able to regulate it a little when we had a good relationship with the 

Police Jury because if they messed it up, we could call them and they would come fix it.  Now 

we no longer have that luxury and we are dealing with people that we don’t know.  The 

location of the bin was his big concern.  Ike stated as new businesses come into town they will 

be submitting site plans and the Planning Commission will have the opportunity to review 

those plans and make sure the ones coming into town will follow this.  Councilwoman White 

stated we need to make sure the truck will be able to access their site.  She also wanted to 

address the litter coming from these trucks.  Ike stated we already have that in the ordinance 
98



 2 

and we can put that on the permit.  Mayor Piazza stated we are dealing with professional 

companies and they do this in other cities so they probably have exactly what they need.  

Councilwoman White asked how we will notify those companies.  Mayor Piazza stated that we 

will let them know.  Ike stated there are a limited number of those companies so we will 

obtain their information and let them know what is coming. Mayor Piazza stated that some of 

these companies have already been in contact with Clay. 

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to recommend 

to the City Council to adopt an ordinance to revise and reorganize Chapter 15.5 pertaining to 

Solis Waste at their next meeting scheduled for March 17, 2020.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Piazza declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Mark Piazza 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

 

 

99



1 
 

City of Abbeville 

Council personnel interviews 

March 3, 2020 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met for personnel interviews on March 3, 2020 at 

5:00 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room located at 101 North State 

Street, with the Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members, Francis Plaisance, Terry Broussard, Brady 

Broussard, Jr., Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Roslyn 

White    

 

Members Absent:  None   

 

Also Present:   Lieutenant, Jonathan Touchet 

     

Mayor Piazza stated we are here to interview personnel for the Police Department.   We have 

three applicants to interview 

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to enter into 

executive session to interview three applicants for the Police Department.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to reconvene 

the meeting from executive session.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Piazza declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Mark Piazza 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor  

100



The following ordinance having been introduced at a duly convened meeting on March 17, 

2020, and notice of its introduction having been published in the official journal and a public 

hearing having been held in connection therewith on this date, was offered for final adoption 

by ____________ and seconded by _____________: 

 

ORDINANCE 

20-___ 
 

 WHEREAS, hereto for the Vermilion Parish Police Jury contracted for the collection 

and disposal of solid waste as defined by its Solid Waste Ordinance regardless of the 

classification of the generator; 

 

 WHEREAS, effective the 14th day of May, 2020 the Vermilion Parish Police Jury will 

cancel it contract(s) with waste collection agents for the collection of solid waste generated by 

multi-residential units, commercial units, and industrial units; 

 

 WHEREAS, the affected generators will have to contract with a commercial waste 

collection agent to provide the same service; 

 

 WHEREAS, after conducting a study of this situation the City Council finds that it is in 

the best interest of the City, its residences and businesses to repeal and re-enact Chapter 15.5. – 

Solid Waste to provide uniform regulations for the location of bins, collection of solid waste, and 

disposal of same; 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Abbeville (the "Governing 

Authority"), acting as the governing authority of the City of Abbeville, State of 

Louisiana, that Chapter 15.5 – Solid Waste of the Code of Ordinances be, and the same is 

hereby repealed and re-enacted as follows: 

 

Chapter 15.5 - SOLID WASTE[1] 

Sec. 15.5-1. - Scope of chapter. 

The provisions of this chapter shall apply to all territory within the city limits. 

(Ord. No. 04-10B, § 23-1, 8-3-04) 

Sec. 15.5-2. – Divisions of chapter. 

(a)  Rules applicable to all collection; 
(b) Rules applicable to single residential units; 
(c)  Rules applicable to multi-residential units, commercial 

 units, and industrial units. 

101



Part A -  Rules applicable to all collection. 

Sec. 15.3. - Definitions. 

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 

Bin means a metal receptacle (commonly known as a dumpster) designed to be lifted and 
emptied mechanically, for use at multi-residential, commercial and industrial units. 

Commercial unit means a store, shop or office where business is conducted. A shopping 
center would contain several commercial units. 

Contractors' rubble means the residue from construction, building, demolition of parts or 
whole structures, the residue from do it yourself repairs or other like operations, including 
excavations, or other such projects. 

Garbage means the following: rubbish, trash, kitchen waste, restaurant waste, food 
containers, paper, rags, floor lifter, and other normal kitchen discard, including floor sweepings. 

Generator means the individual, corporation, partnership or group responsible for creating the 
solid waste or other material regulated by this chapter and shall include the property owner, lessee 
and/or transporter of the waste. 

Householder means the user/renter, occupant or in their absence or default to the owner of 
the property. 

Industrial unit means a place of business where manufacturing, canning, assembling, 
processing and the like are conducted. 

Multi-residential unit means any structure, complex, or planned community which houses 
more than one family 

Producer means the entity which either generated the waste or refuse and/or the property 
from which the waste or refuse emanates. 

Single Residential Unit means any generator of solid waste which is neither a multi- family 
unit, a commercial unit, nor an industrial unit. 

Solid waste means garbage and trash and discarded household goods. It shall not include 
hazardous wastes, i.e., any chemical, compound, mixture, substance or article which is designated 
by the United States Environmental Protection Agency or appropriate agency of the state to be 
hazardous. It shall also not include large automobile or other vehicle parts. 

Trash means the following: small quantities of grass trimmings, leaves, hedge trimmings, 
magazines, books, newspapers, wrapping paper (and the like), general household discard not 
including wooden barrels, boxes or crates, but including cardboard boxes and similar objects. 

Trash container means the mechanically collected container distributed by the Vermilion 
Parish Police Jury. 

Vermilion Parish Police Jury includes the jury and any department therein assigned the 

102



responsibility for solid waste matters, or any third party retained by the jury to contractually 
assume the responsibility for the collection of solid waste. 

(Ord. No. 04-10B, § 23-2, 8-3-04) 

Sec. 15.5-4. Depositing of refuse on the property or in the container of 

another. 

No person shall deposit any item in the trash container or bin belonging to another without the 
express consent of the owner of said trash container. No person shall place or deposit any items 
for collection upon the property belonging to another without the express consent of the property 
owner. 

(Ord. No. 04-10B, § 23-9, 8-3-04) 

Sec. 15.5-5. Disposal of garden trash, old furniture and other rubbish 

(a) Collection. No refuse disallowed for deposit into a trash container or bin shall be placed in 
the trash container or bin, nor shall said refuse be placed on the curb line for collection unless a 
request has been made with the Vermilion Parish Police Jury for collection of said refuse. All such 
material placed on the curb line for collection shall be removed within a reasonable period not to 
exceed one (1) month by the owner. 

 

(b) Preparation. Branches, tree limbs, small tree (six-inch diameter) trunks and small tree 
(eighteen-inch diameter) roots, household furniture; and old carpets, linoleum and like floor 
coverings shall be placed on the curb line adjacent to the garbage can, but not on a catch basin, 
or at any other location designated by the Vermilion Parish Police Jury. None of such items shall 
be over eighteen (18) inches in diameter, nor over six (6) feet long. 

(Ord. No. 04-10B, § 23-10, 8-3-04; Ord. No. 15-09 , 11-3-15) 

Sec. 15.5-6. - Disposal of tree trimmings, hedge cuttings, leaves, grass 

and weeds. 

  

(a) Any person desiring to place tree trimmings or hedge cuttings or shrubbery of any kind for 
removal shall request collection by the Vermilion Parish Police Jury. All such material placed on 
the curb line for collection shall be removed within a reasonable period not to exceed one month. 
No material in excess of six (6) feet long nor in excess of eighteen (18) inches in diameter shall be 
placed on the curb line adjacent to the property which generated the refuse. 

 

(b) Leaves, weeds and grass will be considered as trash and shall not be placed on the city 
streets or public rights-of-way in any manner other than bagged and placed within a regulation 
container as defined in section 15.5-5. 

(Ord. No. 04-10B, § 23-11, 8-3-04) 

103



Sec. 15.5-7. - Transportation of garbage, trash or debris. 

Any person transporting, hauling, or permitting the transportation or hauling of any garbage, 
trash, or other debris within the city shall take all reasonable and necessary precautions to prevent 
the scattering or spilling of the garbage, trash, or other debris from the vehicle being used to 
convey the same. Any open conveyance of loose items shall be secured with a tarpaulin or other 
covering to prevent spillage; items enclosed within uncompromised plastic trash bags and 
containers need not be covered. This section shall not apply to trucks properly located with debris 
too heavy to blow off during transportation. 

It shall be the responsibility of the transporter to immediately stop and collect any garbage, 
trash, or other debris which falls off or is blown off of the vehicle being used to convey the same, 
and the failure to do so shall render both the trash generator and the transporter liable unto the 
City of Abbeville for the cost of all remedial action necessary to collect and dispose of the same. 
Any person found to be in violation of this chapter shall be subject to immediate stop and 
impoundment of the vehicle pending compliance. 

(Ord. No. 04-10B, § 23-12, 8-3-04; Ord. No. 15-09 , 11-3-15) 

Sec. 15.5-8. - Yard trash and other large accumulations. 

Items which exceed the size limits set forth in sections 15.5-10 and 15.5-11, above shall be 
removed by the property owner at the owner's expense. Such items shall be removed from the 
property within a reasonable period of time, not to exceed one (1) month. 

In violation hereof the city shall provide the property owner with twenty-four-hours' notice of 
the city's intention to remove, and thereafter, if the city removes the refuse the property owner 
shall be charged the actual cost of removal, with a minimum charge of one hundred dollars 
($100.00) for each collection for such items removed. If the bill is not paid within thirty (30) days, 
the city shall send notice by registered mail to the owner as listed on the city's tax rolls. If the bill is 
still unpaid within thirty (30) days, the city shall have, when duly recorded in the records of 
Vermilion Parish, a lien and privilege upon the real property of the owner or owners for such 
expenses, and such amount shall be carried as an assessment against such property upon the tax 
rolls of the city and may be collected in the same manner as are all taxes of the city. 

(Ord. No. 04-10B, § 23-13, 8-3-04; Ord. No. 15-09 , 11-3-15) 

Sec. 15.5-9. - Disposal of dead animals. 

Dead animals shall not be placed in a trash container or bin, nor shall any dead animal be 
placed on or along any city street or right-of-way for collection. Any person having a dead animal 
on their property shall call notify the city of the animal's location by calling city hall between the 
hours of 9:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. and arranging for collection. 

(Ord. No. 04-10B, § 23-14, 8-3-04; Ord. No. 15-09 , 11-3-15) 

Sec. 15.5-10.. - Fish, poultry and animal waste. 

Refuse created from the cleaning of fish, fowl, game or livestock shall not be placed on the 

104



curb line for collection unless and until the same has been packaged in a sealed plastic bag and 
placed within a trash container approved by the Vermilion Parish Police Jury. 

(Ord. No. 04-10B, § 23-15, 8-3-04) 

Sec. 15.5-11.. - Disposal of waste not classified as garbage or trash. 

 

(a) Building debris such as plaster, roofing, concrete and brickbats resulting from construction, 
repair or remodeling of any building or appurtenances on private property must be privately 
removed by the generator of this debris. 

 

(b) Any person desiring to dispose of any waste, debris or rubbish from dwellings, business 
establishments or other places, due to regular business or from rebuilding or remodeling or new 
construction or other substances not coming within the definition of garbage or trash provided in 
this chapter and who desires to place the same between the curb line and the sidewalk line for 
collection by private collectors, or by himself, must securely tie, wrap or place the same in a 
container so that the substance cannot be scattered upon the streets of the city. Such waste, 
debris, rubbish or other substance shall not be left between the curb line and the sidewalk for an 
extended period of time, not to exceed one (1) month. 

 

(c) Any contractor or business which is hired or retained to do or perform work at any location 
within the city, or performs work outside of the city, is prohibited from placing construction 
materials and/or debris on or adjacent to city streets to be removed by the Vermilion Parish Police 
Jury, and is required to transport the same to the Vermilion Parish Solid Waste facility, or to obtain 
a temporary (forty-eight (48) hours) on-site container from the Vermilion Parish Police Jury for the 
disposal of such materials. 

(Ord. No. 04-10B, § 23-16, 8-3-04; Ord. No. 15-09 , 11-3-15) 

Sec. 15.5-12. - Disposal of appliances. 

  

(a) Disposal of appliances shall be by special pick-up arranged with the Vermilion Parish 
Police Jury. At no time shall appliances of any type or nature be placed along the curb line for 
collection except where arrangements have been made, and only within twelve (12) hours of the 
collection. 

 

(b) In violation hereof, the city shall provide the property owner with twenty-four-hours' notice 
of the city's intention to remove, and thereafter, if the city removes the refuse the property owner 
shall be charged fifty dollars ($50.00), which shall be paid within thirty (30) days. If the bill is not 
paid within thirty (30) days, the city shall send notice by registered mail to the owner as listed on 
the city's tax rolls. If the bill is still unpaid within thirty (30) days, the city shall have, when duly 
recorded in the records of Vermilion Parish, a lien and privilege upon the real property of the 
owner or owners for such expenses, and such amount shall be carried as an assessment against 
such property upon the tax rolls of the city and may be collected in the same manner as are all 
taxes of the city. 

105



(Ord. No. 04-10B, § 23-17, 8-3-04) 

Sec. 15.5-13. - Disposal of refrigerators, deep freezers and similar air-

tight containers. 

  

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person, organization, firm or corporation to abandon or place 
out-of-doors on any lot, tract, parcel of ground, right-of-way, or area where children may be playing 
or have access in the city limits, any icebox, refrigerator, deep freezer or any other container of 
any kind which has an airtight door, or which may not be released for opening from the inside of 
such icebox, refrigerator, deep freezer or container, or any abandoned, unattended or discarded 
icebox, refrigerator, deep freezer or any other container of any kind which is airtight and has a 
snap lock or other device thereon without first removing such snap lock or door from such icebox, 
refrigerator or container. 

 

(b) Disposal of such appliances must be made in accordance with state and federal 
regulations governing refrigerant may be disposed of in any solid waste disposal site meeting all 
city, parish and state regulations. They may be placed out for special pickup in accordance 
with section 15.5-17, only if sealed to prevent entry and only if in compliance with other applicable 
law. 

(Ord. No. 04-10B, § 23-18, 8-3-04) 

State Law reference— Similar provisions, R.S. 14:324. 

Sec. 15.5-14. - Mixing collectible and non-collectible waste. 

The designations and classification of waste above is mandatory and the commingling of non-
collectible items with collectible items or depositing non-collectible items within trash containers is 
prohibited. 

(Ord. No. 04-10B, § 23-19, 8-3-04) 

Sec. 15.5-15. - Tampering with trash containers or bins. 

It shall be unlawful for any person to damage, molest, remove, handle or to otherwise disturb 
the trash containers or the contents either while situated upon private property or which have been 
placed on city property for servicing or collection by the Vermilion Parish Police Jury. This section 
does not apply to the owner, occupant, lessee or tenant of the residence or dwelling so placing the 
container and contents. 

(Ord. No. 04-10B, § 23-20, 8-3-04) 

Sec. 15.5-16. - Placing substances in streets, sidewalks, alleys and 

ditches. 

  

106



(a) It is hereby declared unlawful for any person to throw, place or cause to be placed on any 
sidewalk or on paved street or in the gutter on any paved street or on any unpaved street or in the 
drainage ditches adjoining any unpaved street, or in any drainage ditch or drainage space, any 
nails, tacks, bottles, rocks, bricks, paper, trash or other debris of any kind, or any other substance 
whatsoever, provided that this subsection does not apply to regularly designated maintenance 
crews of the city or public utility companies as provided by law. 

 

(b) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (a) of this section, any person placing or 
throwing in any street or alley any dead cats, chickens, rats or other animals, tainted meat, 
decayed fruits or vegetables, filthy water, human or other excrement, or anything of like nature, or 
any substance in any manner other than as provided in this chapter, shall be guilty of causing a 
nuisance and shall be required to abate the same, or to pay for the abatement by the city or its 
designee. 

(Ord. No. 04-10B, § 23-21, 8-3-04) 

Sec. 15.5-17. - Right-of-way of department vehicles. 

All employees and vehicles of the city's authorized solid waste collectors shall have the right-
of-way in the use of the streets, and are hereby given permission to use any part of the streets in 
the operation of such vehicles in collecting solid waste from the streets of the city. 

(Ord. No. 04-10B, § 23-22, 8-3-04) 

Sec. 15.5-18. - Dumping on private property. 

It shall be unlawful for any person to maintain a public or private dump within the city or to 
allow the storage or collection of any garbage, trash or refuse upon any property within the city. It 
shall also be unlawful for any person dump, or cause to be dumped, any garbage, trash or refuse 
upon any property belonging to any person without the written consent of the owner. 

(Ord. No. 04-10B, § 23-23, 8-3-04) 

Sec. 15.5-19. - Responsibility to keep premises clean. 

All owners and occupants of any building, house or structure, as well as the owner or lessee 
of any parcel of ground shall be held responsible for the cleanliness of their premises as well as 
the adjacent public right of way when the condition thereof is a result or consequence of owner or 
lessee activity on the property. It is hereby declared unlawful to sweep paper, trash, lit ter, dirt, or 
other material into the streets, sidewalks, or other public ways. 

(Ord. No. 04-10B, § 23-24, 8-3-04) 

Sec. 15.5-20. - Scavenging. 

It shall be unlawful for any person to perform scavenging operations or to scavenge, dig in or 
remove trash from within trash containers or bins placed upon the curb line for collection. This 
section shall not apply to the owner of the trash container or bin. 

107



(Ord. No. 04-10B, § 23-25, 8-3-04) 

Sec. 15.5-21. - Hauling swill through streets. 

All persons hauling or conveying swill, slop and like refuse through the streets of the city shall 
carry the same in closed metal containers, securely covered, so that the contents may not be 
spilled or odors emitted therefrom. 

(Ord. No. 04-10B, § 23-26, 8-3-04) 

 

Sec. 15.5-22. - Interfering with motor vehicle traffic. 

Interference with motor vehicle traffic is prohibited. All trash containers, trash, waste, rubbish 
tree trimmings, debris, or any other material shall be placed for collection in such a manner so as 
not to interfere with motor vehicle traffic in any way. 

This section shall be made part of the following sections by reference: 

 15.5-8; 15.5-10; 15.5-11; 15.5-13; 15.5-16; 15.5-17; 15.5-18; and 15.5-21. 

( Ord. No. 15-09 , 11-3-15) 

Sec. 15.5-23. - Penalties. 

Any violation of this chapter shall be considered both a public nuisance and a misdemeanor 
and enforcement may be obtained both civilly and criminally. All cost associated with the repair 
and remediation of the nuisance shall be borne by the generator of the nuisance. 

Any person who violates this chapter shall, upon conviction thereof, be guilty of a 
misdemeanor and shall be subject to a fine of not more than five hundred dollars ($500.00), or a 
prison term of not more than thirty (30) days, or both, for each violation. 

(Ord. No. 04-10B, § 23-28, 8-3-04; Ord. No. 15-09 , 11-3-15) 

Sec. 15-218. - Violation and penalties. 
 

Part B.  Rules applicable to single residential units. 

Sec. 15.5-24 - Collection of solid waste. 

During the existence of the current solid waste tax and designation of the Vermilion Parish 
Police Jury as the public body charged with the responsibility for collecting such waste, the city 
designates the police jury as the legal entity which shall exercise authority on behalf of the city for 
the collection of waste within the corporate limits of the city, and the police jury shall designate the 
times and manner of collection, as well as requirements for trash containers. 

108



(Ord. No. 04-10B, § 23-3, 8-3-04) 

Sec. 15.5-25. - Applicability of police jury requirements. 

Where not inconsistent with this chapter, the rules and regulations imposed by the Vermilion 
Parish Police Jury regarding the collection of all refuse shall be binding and enforceable by the city 
as part of this chapter. Where a conflict exists between this chapter and a regulation of the police 
jury, the conflict will be resolved in favor of the city ordinance where the ordinance imposes a more 
stringent requirement than the parish. 

(Ord. No. 04-10B, § 23-4, 8-3-04) 

Sec. 15.5-26. - Type and construction of trash containers. 

Every single residential unit in the city limits shall have and utilize a container approved and 
provided by the Vermilion Parish Police Jury. The use of a container and/or receptacle not 
specifically approved by the Vermilion Parish Police Jury is specifically prohibited. 

(Ord. No. 04-10B, § 23-5, 8-3-04) 

Sec. 15.5-27. - Items for deposit within trash containers. 

Adopted by reference are the rules established by the Vermilion Parish Police Jury regulating 
the nature of items which may be deposited within a trash container. No material shall be placed 
within a trash container which is specifically excluded therefrom. Any material removed from the 
trash container by the Vermilion Parish Police Jury shall be handled by the producer of the refuse 
as provided herein. 

(Ord. No. 04-10B, § 23-6, 8-3-04) 

Sec. 15.5-28. - Collection fees. 

Any fees or charges imposed by the Vermilion Parish Police Jury for the collection of special items 
or additional services outside of the standard collection required under the current taxing structure 
shall be paid by the individual, or business, or juridical entity incurring the same. 

(Ord. No. 04-10B, § 23-7, 8-3-04; Ord. No. 15-09 , 11-3-15) 

Sec. 15.5-29. - Location of trash containers.  

(a) Storage. All trash containers shall be maintained in a location on the property in such a 
manner as to be obscured from public view. Under no circumstances shall a trash container 
remain along or adjacent to the curb line in front of the property which has generated the trash 
unless it is placed within an enclosed fence situated off of the city right-of-way. 

 

(b) Collection. All trash containers shall be placed on the curb line in front of the property 
which has generated the trash in the position and location designated by the Vermilion Parish 
Police Jury. No trash container shall be placed on the curb line for collection more than twelve (12) 

109



hours prior to the regularly designated collection for that property and shall be removed from the 
on the curb line within twelve (12) hours after collection. 

(c) Exceptions. Persons having a condition prevents compliance or constitutes an undue 
hardship in complying with this section may apply for a variance. Request for a variance shall be 
made to the Vermilion Parish Police Jury 100 N. State St., Suite 200, Abbeville, LA 70510, and 
shall include: (1) the party's name; (2) the municipal address of the property; (3) the trash 
container number; and (4) the reason for requesting a variance, any medical documentation. 
Requests for variance shall be considered on a case by case basis by the Vermilion Parish Police 
Jury and any decision rendered shall be at the sole discretion of the Vermilion Parish Police Jury. 

(d) No trash containers shall be placed below or in close proximity to power lines, or other 
wires that cross the street and/or roadways. 

(Ord. No. 04-10B, § 23-8, 8-3-04; Ord. No. 15-09 , 11-3-15) 

Part C.  Rules applicable to multi-residential units, commercial  
  units, and industrial units. 

Sec. 15.5-30. – Collection of solid waste. 

(a) Effective May 14, 2020 the Vermilion Parish Police Jury will no longer contract to collect 
solid waste generated from multi-residential units, commercial units or industrial units.  
Henceforth, non-residential generators will have to contract with a solid waste removal 
company to receive this service. 

(b) It is the findings of the City Council of the City of Abbeville that it is in the best interest of 
the citizens and property owners of the City of Abbeville for it to regulate said collection 
in order to both protect property rights, assure uniform collection and disposal of solid 
waste, and minimize traffic disruption caused by said collection.  

Sec. 15.5-31. – Authorized collection agents. 

(a) One or more solid waste removal companies may be permitted by the City to contract 
with non-residential generators of solid waste. 

(b) Each applicant shall submit to the City’s Department of Tax, Revenue & Permits a 
certificate of good standing issued by the Secretary of State, certificate of insurance, as 
well as proposed the times and day of collection with its completed application. 

(c) Once the permit is issued the permittee shall provide a current listing of its customers, 
which shall be updated annually, or more often as may be required by the Director of the 
said department and shall update its insurance certificate annually. 

(d) A onetime permit fee for each bin is hereby fixed by the City Council at $5.00 per bin. 
(e) The fee for the initial permit shall be prorated effective the date of issue and renewed 

annually, at no charge by the 15th of January for each ensuing year. 
(f) Failure to timely renew the permit shall terminate all rights to collect solid waste within 

the corporate limits of the City  

Sec. 15.5-32. - Location of bins.  

(a) It is the obligation of the generator of solid waste to provide the Public Works Director  
with a plan or diagram reflecting the location of it bin, in accordance with the following provisions: 
(b) Every bin regulated herein shall be stored on the premises of the generator in a location 

that is readily accessible to the duly authorized collection agent.  All bins shall be inconspicuous 

110



from the public streets, adjacent properties, and shall not be located in public right of ways, 
except as hereinafter authorized. 
 
(c) Once the location of a bin has been approved by the Public Works Director it shall be 

unlawful to place said ben in another location without first obtaining either authority granted by 
the Public Works Director or a variance granted by the City Council. 

 

(d) Any bin authorized to be stored in an alley shall be located next to the building in such a 
fashion as to allow unabated travel through the alley. 

Sec. 15.5-33. -  Obligations of generators. 

(a) The owners and occupants of a generating property shall be responsible for maintaining 
said property, together with the sidewalks, ditches, and alleys adjacent thereto, in a 
clean condition, free from all refuse and litter. 

(b) The owners and occupants of a generating property shall be responsible for maintaining 
the bin and its adjacent area in a clean and sanitary condition. 

(c) The owners and occupants of a generating property shall not allow the bin to be 
overfilled resulting in spillage. 

(d) Violations shall result in the filing of littering charges against the property owner and the 
manager of the business.  

Sec. 15.5-34. – Obligations of the collection agent.   

The permitted collection agent shall: 

(a) Provide new commercial grade bins to its customers.  Said bins shall lids in good 
operating condition. 

(b) The City shall have the right to inspect and condemn the bin. 
(c)  Any bin found to be defective which creates a nuisance or may pose a health or litter 

problem shall be reported to the collection agent, which shall repair or replace the bin 
within fifteen (15) days of receipt of written notice. 

(d) Failure to timely comply with the above provisions of the said notice shall result in a civil 
fine of $100.00 per day from the date of the notice until the violation is remedied. 

Sec. 15.5-35. - Christmas tree lots. 

(a) Every person who engages in the seasonal sale of non-artificial Christmas trees by virtue 
of an itinerant vendor's license obtained pursuant to chapter 10, hereof, shall remove all trees from 
the premises upon which they are offered for sale which are remaining on such premises on 
December 27 of the year they are offered for sale. 

 

(b) The tree removal required in subsection (a) shall be accomplished no later than seven (7) 
days from the said December 27 date. 

 

(c) In addition to the persons engaged in the sale of non-artificial Christmas trees, the owner 
of the property upon which such trees are offered for sale shall be subject to the provisions of this 
section. 

111



 

(d) Failure of any person who is subject to this section to comply with the provisions hereof 
shall result in the denial of a permit to engage in the sale of Christmas trees the following year in 
addition to all other applicable penalties. 

 

(e) All persons who apply for a permit to engage in the sale of Christmas trees shall deposit 
with the city the sum of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) in the form of cash or cashier's check 
made payable to the city. In the event remaining trees are not removed as required by this section, 
the deposit shall be automatically forfeited. The deposit shall be returned to the person to whom 
the permit was issued within twenty-four (24) hours of verification by the city of compliance with 
this section. 

 

(f) This section shall not apply to any business which markets Christmas trees as part of its 
regular business, nor any non-profit organization. 

(Ord. No. 04-10B, § 23-27, 8-3-04) 

 

 

Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon execution by the Mayor. 

 

 This ordinance having been submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows: 

 

 YEAS:    

 

 NAYS:   

 

 ABSENT: 

 

 And the ordinance was declared adopted on this, the __ day of March, 2020. 

 

 

 

      

 Kathleen Faulk, Clerk   Mark F. Piazza, Mayor 

 

 
 

112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



A motion was made by                                                                                             , and

duly seconded by                                                                                                     , and duly adopted:

RESOLUTION OF ACCEPTANCE

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE
AN ACT OF ACCEPTANCE FROM L. MICHAUD
CONSTRUCTION, LLC, PERTAINING TO THE COMPLETION
OF THE CONTRACT FOR CHRIS CRUSTA MEMORIAL
AIRPORT / REHABILITATION OF THE MAIN HANGAR STATE
PROJECT NO. H.013655.

WHEREAS, L. Michaud Construction, LLC, as Contractor, has completed the Chris

Crusta Memorial Airport / Rehabilitation of the Main Hangar State Project No. H.013655 in

accordance with the plans and specifications contained in the contract documents pertaining thereto;

and

WHEREAS, the City of Abbeville desires to accept the completed work;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City of Abbeville that the Mayor of

said City of Abbeville be, and is hereby empowered, authorized, and directed to execute a Notice

of Acceptance for and on behalf of the City of Abbeville, accepting the work as being completed,

and that he be authorized and directed to have a copy of said acceptance recorded in the Conveyance

Records of the Parish of Vermilion, State of Louisiana.

THEREUPON, the above resolution was declared adopted.

***************************************************************** 

C E R T I F I C A T E

I, Kathy Faulk, City Clerk of the City of Abbeville, do hereby certify that the above

is a true and exact copy of a resolution adopted by the Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville

on                                                                     , 2020, at which time a quorum was present and voting.

                                                                              
KATHY FAULK, CITY CLERK
CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

N:\DATA\9144\9144-03 BES\Construction\9144 ROA.wpd

132



NOTICE OF ACCEPTANCE

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN, and especially all subcontractors, architects,

engineers, master mechanics, mechanics, workmen, laborers, and furnishers of materials,

machinery and fixtures:

Public notice is hereby given, according to law, that the undersigned Owner has

accepted the work done by L. Michaud Construction, LLC, 115 Malveaux Road, Lafayette, LA

70506, under the contract with said firm for the Chris Crusta Memorial Airport / Rehabilitation

of the Main Hangar State Project No. H.013655.

All subcontractors, architects, engineers, master mechanics, mechanics, workmen,

laborers, and furnishers of materials, machinery, fixtures and supplies must assert whatever

claims they have against the said Contractors or against the property growing out of the

execution of the contract according to law, within forty-five (45) days from registration hereof.

                                                                              
MARK PIAZZA, MAYOR
CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

                                                                      , 2020

N:\DATA\9144\9144-03 BES\Construction\9144 NOA.wpd

133


	Top
	1. Police Department personnel
	1. Anne Falgout
	Economic Recovery Toolkit

	1. Bills
	Bills paid in February 2020
	Bills paid in March 2020

	2. Minutes
	February 18, 2020 special meeting
	February 18, 2020 regular meeting
	March 3, 2020 regular meeting
	March 19, 2020 emergency special meeting
	March 3, 2020 Committee meeting
	03-03-20 personnel inteviews

	1. Public hearing
	2. Solid Waste ordinance changes
	Chapter 15.5 Solid Waste

	3. Fire Department Heaters
	Fire Dept truck room heater quotes

	4. Downtown Abbeville Streetscape project
	PMT 1 and 2 for Streetscape project

	5. Mechanical Screen at Wastewater treatment Plant
	6. Stonebridge lift station
	Stonebridge lift station

	7. 103 Gauraud Street rubbish abatement
	103 Gauraud Street bids for abatement of rubbish

	8. IGA with Sheriff
	9. Main Hangar payment #4
	9144 Application for Payment No. 4

	10. Main Hangar acceptance
	9144 ROA
	9144 NOA

	11. Authorize bids runway/taxiway project
	1. No old business
	1. COVID virus
	Bottom

